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Interest income 59,167 51,668 7,499 14.5%

Interest expense (34,747) (32,206) (2,541) (7.9%)

Net interest income 24,420 19,462 4,958 25.5%

Net fee and commission income 116 55 61 110.9%

Dividend income 1,644 1,831 (187) (10.2%)

Net losses on investments (821) (2,391) 1,570 65.7%

Other operating income 236 266 (30) (11.3%)

Operating income 25,595 19,223 6,372 33.1%

Other operating expenses (4,299) (3,760) (539) (14.3%)

Profit before tax 18,467 16,693 1,774 10.6%

Income tax expense (5,255) (4,774) (481) (10.1%)

Net profit 13,212 11,919 1,293 10.8%

(2,829) 1,230 (4,059) (330.0%)Write back of provision /
(Provision for impaired loans)

In 2003, the Bank reported pre-tax earnings of RMB 18.5 billion, an increase of RMB 1.8

billion, or 10.6%, over 2002.  This increase consisted principally of significantly higher interest

income related to the 27.2% growth in our loan portfolio from RMB 896.2 billion at the end of

2002 to RMB 1,139.9 billion in 2003.  This effect was offset to some extent by the need to

provide RMB 2.8 billion for credit losses, as compared to a reversal of provisions of RMB

1.2 billion in 2002 related to significant improvement in asset quality during that year. In this

regard, we continue to maintain a non-performing loan ratio of less than 2%.

For the years ended 31 December
(In millions of RMB) 2003 2002 Change Change%

�� ! FINANCIAL REVIEW
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�� RSIRSR QVIOQR TIPOM NQKVB
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�� !"# OMO NNT UR TOKSB

�� NRM RS VQ NSTKVB

�� 59,167 51,668 7,499 14.5%
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�� 34,747 32,206 2,541 7.9%

�� !"# 24,420 19,462 4,958 25.5%
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�� ! FINANCIAL REVIEW

NET INTEREST INCOME

(In millions of RMB) 2003 2002 Change Change %

Interest income

Loans to customers 56,565 49,245 7,320 14.9%

Cinda bonds 2,250 2,250 - -

Balances with the PBOC 202 117 85 72.6%

Others 150 56 94 167.9%

Sub-total 59,167 51,668 7,499 14.5%

Interest expense

Debt securities in issue 31,438 29,294 2,144 7.3%

Borrowing from other institutions 2,918 2,658 260 9.8%

Due to customers and banks 387 254 133 52.4%

Others 4 - 4 -

Sub-total 34,747 32,206 2,541 7.9%

Net interest income 24,420 19,462 4,958 25.5%



OMMP�� !"#$%&'(NQKVB��� !"#$%&'()*OPKUB�� !�� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123MKRB�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%
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�OMMO�� !�� !"#$%&TKVB��� !"#!#$%&'()*+,-./01

�� !"#�� !"#$%&'"()#*+,-#*.(/012�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&$%'()*+,-.��� !"#$%&'()*+,-./$%01

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()

OMMP�� !"#$%&ORKRB�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345+67

�� !�� !"#$%&'()*+,$-./012345678

Total interest income on loans grew by 14.9% in 2003.  This growth was related to an increase

in the average volume of loans of 23.8%, partially offset by a decrease in average rates of

0.5%.  The slightly lower average rates generally reflect reductions in interest rates announced

by the PBOC during 2002.

Total interest expense increased by about 7.9% in comparison with 2002, consistent with the

increase of debt securities issued to meet the funding needs created by our loan growth.

During 2003, after the PBOC lowered domestic interest rates, we redeemed a number of our

higher yielding bond issues and re-funded them through lower yielding debentures, in order

to lower the average rate of bonds outstanding.

The 25.5% increase in net interest income during 2003 is principally the result of our loan

growth and the maintenance of a relatively stable net interest spread.  Here, we continue to

leverage our superior credit rating to achieve optimal borrowing costs.
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�� ! FINANCIAL REVIEW

�� !"#$

OMMP���� !�� !"#$%&'(N���OMMO�� !"#MKRR�� !"OMMP
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NET FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Our net fees and commission income more than doubled from RMB 55 million in 2002 to

RMB 116 million in 2003.  This increase is principally due to a more intense focus on further

developing our bond underwriting and loan syndication activities.  While net fees and

commission income is not significant relative to our net interest income, we remain committed

to growth in this area to expand our sources of income, improve our profitability and diversify

our business risks.

�� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0��1234567��89:�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#

�� !"#$"%&OMMP�� !"#$%NMKOB��� !"OMMP�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+ ,

DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividend income relates to dividend distributions earned on equity securities that were acquired

through debt-to-equity swaps.  The amount of dividend distributions varies from year to year

with the dividend policies of the companies whose securities we hold, the levels of our holdings,

and the performance of the underlying securities.  The 10.2% decrease in dividend income

during 2003 largely reflects  the sale of equity securities in two companies.



�� !"# 2003 2002 �� �� ! %

�� !

�� !"# NIOQO OIORO ENIMNMF EQQKUBF

�� !"#LE��F EQONF NPV ERSMF EQMOKVBF

�� 821 2,391 (1,570) (65.7%)

(In millions of RMB) 2003 2002 Change Change %

Net losses on investment

Provision on equity investments 1,242 2,252 (1,010) (44.8%)

Net losses/(Gain) on sale of investments (421) 139 (560) (402.9%)

Total 821 2,391 (1,570) (65.7%)

�� !"#$%&'()* NRKT�� � OMMO�� !" SRKTB��� !"# OMMP��

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.!"/012 3456�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.

Net losses on investment securities decreased by RMB 1.6 billion, or 65.7% from 2002.  The

decrease is due to the lower levels of provisions that were made in 2003, and the recognition

of gains on the sale of certain investments.  The decrease in the level of provisions reflects

our generally lower levels of equity investment holdings.

�� !

NET LOSS ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES
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�� ! FINANCIAL REVIEW

�� !"#$%&'()*

OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND FAIR VALUES

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345"6789:;<=>'?@AB�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567OMMP���� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$%&'()*+,NB�

The relatively modest amounts of net changes in the fair value of derivatives and trading

securities reflects the limited extent of our use of derivatives and securities trading activities.

During 2003, other operating income remained at a level of less than 1% of our pre-tax income.

�� !"# 2003 2002 �� �� ! %

�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*

�� !"#$%&'()*+ NTU ONU EQMF ENUKPBF

�� RU QU NM OMKUB

�� 236 266 (30) (11.3%)

(In millions of RMB) 2003 2002 Change Change %

Other operating income

Changes in fair value of derivatives

and trading securities 178 218 (40) (18.3%)

Others 58 48 10 20.8%

Total 236 266 (30) (11.3%)



�� !

OPERATING EXPENSES

(In millions of RMB) 2003 2002 Change Change %

Operating expenses

Staff related costs 398 601 (203) (33.8%)

Occupancy expenses 88 93 (5) (5.4%)

Depreciation and amortisation 171 105 66 62.9%

Business tax and surcharges 2,938 2,441 497 20.4%

General operating expenses 704 520 184 35.4%

Total 4,299 3,760 539 14.3%

�� !"# 2003 2002 �� �� ! %

�� !

�� ! PVU SMN EOMPF EPPKUBF

�� !" UU VP ERF ERKQBF

�� !"#$ NTN NMR SS SOKVB

�� !"#$ OIVPU OIQQN QVT OMKQB

�� !"# TMQ ROM NUQ PRKQB

�� 4,299 3,760 539 14.3%
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�� ! FINANCIAL REVIEW

OMMP�� !"#$%&'(�)*+NQKPB��� !"QOKVV�� �� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'� ()*+,'-./01234567'89:;�� !"#$
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The Bank's operating expenses increased by about 14.3% from prior year to RMB 4.3 billion

in 2003.  This increase relates principally to higher business tax and surcharges, which is

based generally on our levels of operating income, partially offset by a decrease in staff

costs.  The 20.4% growth in business tax and surcharges is consistent with the change in our

operating income. The decrease in staff costs reflects the absence in 2003 of RMB 292

million in losses related to the sale of staff housing during 2002.



�� ! FINANCIAL CONDITION
                           �� 12� 31�

�� !"# 2003 2002 �� �� !%

�� ! 1,280,995 1,041,711 239,284 23.0%

�� ! NINPVIVPU UVSIOMP OQPITPR OTKOB

===J=�� NINPUIMVV UVQIMRP OQQIMQS OTKPB

===J=�� ! NIUPV OINRM EPNNF ENQKRBF

�� ! 1,191,566 966,310 225,256 23.3%

�� ! NIMRQIVTM USMIRQP NVQIQOT OOKSB

===J=�� !"# NIMQRITUS URNIOVS NVQIQVM OOKUB

===J=�� !"# VINUQ VIOQT ESPF EMKTBF

�� !"# 89,429 75,401 14,028 18.6%

(In millions of RMB) 2003 2002 Change Change%

Total assets 1,280,995 1,041,711 239,284 23.0%

Total Loans 1,139,938 896,203 243,735 27.2%

  - Loans to customers 1,138,099 894,053 244,046 27.3%

  - Loans to banks 1,839 2,150 (311) (14.5%)

Total liabilities 1,191,566 966,310 225,256 23.3%

Debt securities in issue 1,054,970 860,543 194,427 22.6%

  - Bonds issued in the domestic market 1,045,786 851,296 194,490 22.8%

  - Bonds issued in the foreign market 9,184 9,247 (63) (0.7%)

Total owner’s equity 89,429 75,401 14,028 18.6%

 As of 31 December
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�� ! FINANCIAL REVIEW

�� LOANS

�� !"#$%&'(

LOANS AND PROVISION FOR IMPAIRED LOANS
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�� !"#$%

Loans comprise the majority of our assets and our lending activities are the core of our business.

We, therefore, consider growth in loans to be an important indicator of our business expansion.

At the end of 2003, the outstanding balance of loans increased from RMB 896.2 billion to

RMB 1,139.9 billion, or 27.2%.  Our growth in loans reflects our business strategy and is

planned around our annual budget, which is approved by the Chinese government.  We

generally plan to expand the levels of our lending activity to meet the expectations of our

various constituents and support the growth of the Chinese economy.

OMMO OMMP

�� ! TOTAL ASSETS BREAKDOWN
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The sustained growth rate in the range of 7-9% of the Chinese economy is dependent, in no

small part, to continued infrastructure development and investment in key industry sectors.

In this regard, we have focused our lending on a few major industry sectors -power, road

construction, railways, petrochemicals, and telecommunications.  Total funding by CDB alone

to these industry sectors accounts for two-thirds of the total funding provided by domestic

banks in China.

CDB has a unique status in the Chinese economy and the capacity to provide large scale

financing to significant projects.  Accordingly, we work closely with the central and provincial

governments in identifying large infrastructure projects and underwriting financial support for

those projects.  We have developed effective working relationships with these government

entities, which enable us to identify projects that are both commercially viable and relevant to

the government’s infrastructure development plans.  Although financing for some of the smaller

infrastructure projects can be underwritten by other domestic commercial banks, we often

act as the lead bank in syndicated lending arrangements that allow us to diversify our credit

risk and provide other domestic commercial bank with access to attractive lending

opportunities.

The domestic bond market is still dominated by bonds issued by government and CDB.

Bonds issued by other financial institutions and corporations have not yet become a major

influence in the market.  With our quasi-sovereign rating, CDB bonds are among the most

liquid and highest quality in the domestic bond market.  Accordingly, they are well received

by investors.

BUSINESS REVIEW�� !
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Notes:

1. Busines Line: Responsible for growing the banking practice within the scope of risk management
2. Risk Management Line: Responsible for risk determination and control on a real-time basis

3. Internal Audit and Monitoring Line: Responsible for enhancing internal audit function, monitoring, identifying and resolving issues in risk
    management

4. Operation, Service and Support System: Responsible for providing back-office support to business departments as well as providing
    other services in broader base to support the stable operation of the Bank

5. Loan Review and Approval: A platform linking the business line and risk management line. This committee is responsible for loan approvals

�� ��� !"#$%&'(

BOX 1:  ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE BY BUSINESS LINE
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�� ! OUR LENDING RESULTS
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At the end of 2003, we had RMB 1,139.9 billion in loans outstanding, representing an increase

of 27.2% over 2002.  New loans totalling RMB 243.7 billion were made in 2003, of which RMB

227.3 billion were denominated in RMB and RMB 16.4 billion were denominated in equivalent

US dollars.

Foreign currency loans, which represent approximately 6.3% of our total outstanding loans,

are generally provided for the acquisition, introduction and implementation of foreign

technology, materials, equipment, and advisory services related to key projects.  These loans

are normally designed to meet specific medium and long-term capital financing requirements.

By the end of 2003, our infrastructure and basic industries lending amounted to RMB 1,090.4

billion, accounting for 95.7% of our total loan portfolio at year-end.



2003�� !"#$% (�� !"#$%&

BREAKDOWN OF OUTSTANDING LOANS BY GEOGRAPHICAL
DISTRIBUTION (BASED ON PROJECT LOCATION)

��OMMP�� !"#$%&'()* SKOOB�OMMO�� SKRRB

Note:For 2003, 6.22% are multi-regional, while this number for 2002 is 6.55%

�� ! BREAKDOWN OF OUTSTANDING LOANS BY INDUSTRY
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BUSINESS REVIEW�� !
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�� 

Loan syndication and participation activities were first introduced in China by CDB in 2001

and 2002, respectively.  By working with other financial institutions on either loan originations,

through syndications, or subsequent loan sales, we have not only diversified our credit risk,

but also have improved our relationship with other commercial banks.  More importantly,

though, we have pioneered practices that will become a catalyst for commercial banks to

more broadly support economic development in China.  Specifically, these arrangements

enabled us to support financings that otherwise might not have occurred due to our capital

constraints.  They have also permitted other commercial banks to participate in attractive

financing opportunities that they otherwise might be too large for them to underwrite alone.

In 2003, CDB served as the lead syndicator on one project, totalling RMB 19.4 billion, and

sold participations on 21 projects totalling RMB 12.6 billion.

�� !"#$�� !

LOAN SYNDICATION AND PARTICIPATION
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BOX 2:  THE SUCCESSFUL CASE OF TARGETED-
DEVELOPMENT FINANCE - THREE GORGES PROJECT
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The Three Gorges project represents the effectiveness with which our “Targeted Development

Financing” approach can be used to support infrastructure development in China.  In 1992,

the State Council decided to establish the construction fund for the Three Gorges Construction

and Development Corporation (“Three Gorges Project”), and in January 1993, it created the

Three Gorges Construction Committee, so that the Three Gorges Project could enter its

planning and fund-raising stage.

The funding needs of the Three Gorges Project were enormous and the tenors of the related

loans were long-term in nature.  Commercial banks were reluctant to provide funding due to

the amounts and terms involved.  It was CDB alone who made the commitment to provide

RMB 3.0 billion in funding each year from 1994 to 2003, for a total of RMB 30.0 billion.  The

maturities of these funding ranged up to 15 years.  It was our commitment to this funding,

BUSINESS REVIEW�� !



which enabled the Three Gorges project to commence.  With CDB’s financing, China Three

Gorges Project Corporation (“CTGPC”), a state-owned company, to serve as the entity

responsible for managing the project and owning its assets, was also established.

Supported by CDB in both financing and management advisory services, CTGPC commenced

its operation as planned.  In 1997, the first phase of the project was successfully completed

and CTGPC entered the domestic debt market for the first time, raising RMB 1.0 billion through

its first issuance of corporate bonds. In the subsequent years, CTGPC successfully offered

four additional debt security issues in the domestic debt market, for a total of RMB 16.0

billion.

Eventually, CTGPC successfully engaged commercial banks to provide sufficient financing

for the various elements of the Project.  In 1998, China Construction Bank, Industrial and

Commercial Bank of China and Bank of Communications each signed a three-year loan

agreement with CTGPC for RMB 4.0 billion, RMB 3.0 billion and RMB 3.0 billion, respectively.

The investments made by commercial banks in the form of long-term loans marked the

completion of the transition process from government support to market economy for the

project.

In August 2003, the two 700,000 kilowatt generators went into production, which signified the

commencement of the operation of the Three Gorges Project.  In November 2003, China

Yangtze Power Co., Ltd. (“CYPC”), a state-owned enterprise established for the continuing

financing of the Three Gorges Project, was listed on the domestic stock exchange with RMB

10.0 billion raised.

In summary, the key elements of the success of our “Targeted Development Financing” on

this large-scale project are as follows:
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�=Our initial lending to the project assisted in the formation of the legal entities through

which all funding activities were conducted.  As the lead creditor and financial advisor,

we supported the management’s approach to financing that was consistent with good

commercial practices and conducted within an open and transparent framework.

�=Through their significant level of activities in the domestic debt market and local

stock exchanges, CTGPC and CYPC contributed to the development of the capital market

in China.

�=Modern financial reporting and planning practices have enabled CTGPC to produce

and manage balance sheets and profit/loss statements that are familiar to foreign

investors.  The concept of return on capital has also been introduced, along with cash

flow management techniques.

�=CTGPC has established credit relationships with a number of domestic commercial

banks.  More significantly, though, CDB has helped CTGPC to establish a presence in

the local debt markets.

With the support from our government in marshalling resources and coordination, as well as

the quasi-sovereign rating, CDB was able to help forever relieve the Chinese people from the

natural disasters caused by the Yangzi River.

BUSINESS REVIEW�� !
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BOX 3: HOT TOPICS IN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
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In responding to our government’s call for balanced economic development, we conducted

various studies to identify opportunities for a broader focus.  Such studies focused, among

other things, on the development of China’s western provinces; the revitalization of the

Northeast industrial regions; and support for rural development (rural regions, agricultural

enterprises and farms), and the strategy of “go out ”.
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DEVELOPMENT OF CHINA’S WESTERN PROVINCES

The development of China’s 12 western provinces is part of the national strategy of the Chinese

government.  CDB has always supported our government’s regional development policies,

which include the development of the western provinces.  To accommodate the needs of

these provinces, we made certain adjustments in our internal policies and procedures to give

special attention to the region, such as providing technical support loans at the early stage of

development on key projects, and offering flexible loan tenors and lower interest rate to certain

strategic infrastructure projects.

In 2003, the Bank conducted detailed studies on the impact of the government’s fiscal and

credit policies related to development of the western region.  The results of these studies

were summarized by CDB in “Comments on the Support to the Western Development and

the Building of the Investment and Financing Framework”, and were submitted to the Western

Development Office (“WDO”) of the State Council. Our goal is not only to solve funding

shortages, but also to promote the development of a healthy financial market through working

with local governments and corporate customers.  Our efforts were focused on improving the

management capabilities, corporate governance, and cash flows of corporate customers;

as well as fostering a credit culture in this special region.  With the understanding and support

from local governments, we were able to play an increasingly significant role in the development

of the western provinces.  In 2003, together with the WDO, we conducted a seminar on the

strategic development of the western region, through which, we sought to identify opportunities

on a wide range of technical support loans to promote the infrastructure, economic and

environmental development of the region.

BUSINESS REVIEW�� !
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THE REVITALISATION OF THE NORTHEAST INDUSTRIAL BASES

The revitalisation of the northeast industrial regions is another primary objective of the newly

elected Chinese government in its broader efforts to improve the living standards of the

Chinese people.  Again as a development bank, we have the obligation to assist our

government in achieving its goals.  In 2003, the Bank conducted studies that were focused

on the efforts needed to rejuvenate these industrially rich regions.  These studies included

regional economic development analysis, detailed interviews with national and local
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Slender West Lake, one of Yangzhou’s best known scenic spots, is the most recognized

symbol of this famous historical and cultural city.  In recent years, though, the water quality of

the lake had been deteriorating due to a lack of natural water sources.  It had also suffered

from the discharge of domestic sewage and industrial wastewaters. This situation had had a

significant adverse impact on the environment of this entire scenic area.

In order to turn the water clear again and solve the problems of wastewater discharge and

supply of fresh water, the city initiated a comprehensive environmental enhancement project

to divert the water from the Beijing-Hangzhou Grand Canal to the Slender West Lake. The

total investment in this project was RMB 830.0 million, with a loan commitment of RMB 400.0

million from the Bank, which had been fully disbursed by the end of 2002.  This project

significantly improved the water quality of the Slender West Lake, accelerated infrastructure

building in the area, improved the living standard of local residents, and increased commercial

investment opportunities.  More importantly, it contributed to the growth of local economy

through a sharp reversal in the decline of the local tourist industry.

�� !" PROJECTS  AND CLIENTS
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The Harbin to Dalian Electric Railway project comprises the development of the infrastructure

to support electrically powered train travel on the existing two-way railway between Harbin

and Dalian ("Ha Da Railway").  This railway, which is 946 kilometers in length, starts from

Harbin and winds through Jilin and Liaoning provinces before reaching Dalian.

The Ha Da Railway, which was originally built in 1898, is the economic artery of northeastern

China. It has a large passenger and freight capacity and has been known as the "golden line"

for the past 100 years.  During 1994, the Ha Da Railway was formally brought onto our

government's agenda as one of its key construction projects during the country's 9th Five

Year Plan Period. After seven years of construction, the improved Ha Da Railway became

operational in August, 2001, and provided northeastern China with its first electrically powered

THE HARBIN TO DALIAN ELECTRIC RAILWAY
�� !"#$%&
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railway. The annual freight capacity of the Ha Da railway now exceeds 70 million tons.

The Ha Da Railway is the first electric railway in China to use German electric rail traction

technology and equipments under governmental cooperation program with Germany.  This

project achieved three records - the shortest time to complete the cable electrization of a

railway, the longest single electrization railway length, and the highest electrization standard

in the country. The entire railway has 17 traction transformers, 2,800 kilometers of line contact

network and 4 remote control centers. The speed for passenger trains is 140 kilometers to

160 kilometers per hour and the speed for cargo train is 120 kilometers per hour.

The total investment of the project is RMB 9.4 billion and loans from CDB totalled approximately

RMB 4.1 billion, which accounts for 44% of the total investment.

�� !" PROJECTS  AND CLIENTS
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The Hangzhou Bay Bridge in Zhejiang province is the longest cross-sea

bridge that is currently under construction in the world.  It provides the most

convenient way to cross the Hangzhou Bay on the Tongjiang to Sanya national

highway, which is part of the core national highway network.  It is also the quickest

way to connect the coastal cities of Zhejiang province with Shanghai.  The construction

of the bridge will also strengthen the connection between Shanghai and the key port

city of Beilun. This project starts in Hejiatou along the north coast of Hangzhou Bay,

near the juncture of the Eastwest Road and Zajiasu expressway, and ends in Hengwan

Bay. The entire project is 36 kilometers long, with the bridge alone being 32.7

kilometres, with a six-lane freeway.

The total investment of Hangzhou Bay Bridge is RMB11.8 billion, with funding of RMB7.0

billion in bank loans.  CDB has made a lending commitment of RMB 4.0 billion to the project.

�� !"#$%& HANGZHOU BAY BRIDGE
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The Tianjin Express Railway project consists of the construction of an express railway from

the urban district of Tianjin to the new Binhai industrial zone and is one of the key construction

projects of the city government. The length of the railway is 45.5 kilometers and the trains

travelling its route are expected to reach speeds up to100 kilometers per hour.  The completion

of this project will further strengthen the economic development of the Binhai area and support

the Tianjin city government’s strategy of expanding its industrial zone to the eastern part of

the city, thus helping the entire region achieve balanced and sustainable economic growth.

This project was started in June 2001.  It completed its pilot run on 1 October 2003 and it is

expected to commence its operation on 28 March 2004.  The total investment of this project

is RMB 6.6 billion and CDB has made lending commitments of RMB 3.0 billion, of which,

RMB 1.5 billion has been disbursed.

TIANJIN EXPRESS RAILWAY
�� !"#$%!&'()*+,-./
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“By having CDB as a business partner, we were able to build 15 freeways with a total length

of 1,410 kilometers, connecting 17 cities and towns around Sichuan province and significantly

improve the road condition in the region.”

Since its establishment in1996, the Sichuan Freeway

Construction and Development Corporation has been

responsible for the construction and management of the

freeways in the province.  By the end of 2003, CDB had made

total lending commitments of RMB 35.0 billion, of which, RMB

12.5 billion has been disbursed.  With the completion of the 15

freeways, a network of roads with the City of Chengdu (capital

of the province) in the center was create, and the initial phase

of the modernization of the transportation infrastructure of the

most populated province in China was completed.

SICHUAN FREEWAY CONSTRUCTION AND
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
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“With the support from CDB, we were able to gain access to world-class technology and

equipment to enhance our production capabilities.  The advisory services provided by the

Bank also helped to enhance our corporate management.  Further, the direct access to the

capital market achieved through our bond issuance underwritten by CDB could potentially

result in the reduction of financing cost to our company and improvement of our bottom line.”

Yankuang Coal Mining Group (“Yankuang”) is the second largest coal mining company in

China.  In the past several years, CDB has provided Yankuang with a wide range of services-

including short- and long-term loans, bond underwriting and other investment banking services.

�� !"#$% YANKUANG COAL MINING GROUP

�� !" PROJECTS  AND CLIENTS



Such services helped grow their business and maintain their strong market position in the

coal mining industry in China.  In 1998, Yankuang’s common stock was successfully listed on

the Shanghai, Hong Kong and New York stock exchanges.

Management of Yankuang has a very good understanding of our “Targeted Development

Financing” concept, and works closely with us in expanding their business horizon, improving

their credibility in the market and enhancing their image in the industry.
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Our funding is largely defined by our loan origination needs.  Over the years, we have developed

a variety of funding sources, including debenture issuance, special government tax program,

and inter-bank money market.  We also maintain a certain level of customer deposits, but

such deposits are limited to amounts incidental to our customer lending activities.  The majority

of our funding still comes from bonds issued in domestic and foreign capital markets, which

take advantage of CDB’s backing from the Chinese government and cost advantage in

effectively securitizing sovereign credit.
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CDB continued to be the second largest bond issuer in China, behind the Ministry of Finance.

However, on the inter-bank bond market, the volume of CDB’s issuance exceeded the treasury

bonds issued by the Ministry of Finance for the first time in 2003.  During the year, we issued

debt securities totalling RMB 420.0 billion, representing a 68% increase from a year ago, of

which, RMB 340.0 billion are medium- to long-term and RMB 80.0 billion are short-term.

�� ! FUNDING SOURCES
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As one of the largest issuers, we are obligated to cultivate a growth-oriented, but balanced

bond market in China.  In 2003, we continued our efforts in this area through the introduction

of new products to meet the increasingly more sophisticated needs of investors.  We introduced

bonds with forward delivery and interest rate swap options, as well as a number of bonds

issued for special purposes, such as the SARS bonds.

We continued to explore other potential sources of funding, such as the postal savings

institutions, national social security system and insurance companies.  In 2003, we signed an

agreement with National Post Savings, resulting in RMB 2.0 billion of additional funding

capacity.
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Our funding sources for foreign currencies consist primarily of export credit facilities, overseas

or domestic bond issues, international syndicated loans, and loans from foreign governments.

Funding for foreign currencies is largely dependent on our lending levels.  In 2003, we raised

a total of USD 1.5 billion in foreign currency financing, of which, USD 500.0 million was raised

through the domestic bond market and another USD 500.0 million from domestic borrowings.

In addition, we purchased USD 500.0 million in the domestic market through foreign exchange

transactions.

Thanks to the quality of our lending portfolio and our status as a government policy bank, our

international credit rating continued to be the strongest among domestic banks.  Through

proactive communication, CDB increased its transparency in front of the international credit

rating agencies.  The rating of our long-term debt by Moody’s was raised to A2 from Baa1 at

the end of last year, and was consistent with China’s sovereign rating.  At the beginning of

2004, Standard & Poor raised China’s sovereign rating as well as CDB’s from BBB to BBB+.

In addition, as in the past, FITCH and Japan’s Rating and Investment Information Company

both gave CDB credit ratings that were consistent with China’s sovereign rating.

�� ! FOREIGN CURRENCY FUNDING
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In order to better serve our customers, we strive to make more services and products available

to them. As an example, by leveraging our capabilities in underwriting debts of our clients, we

believe that we can build a viable investment banking practice. We view CDB as more than

the project finance arm of the Chinese government. We believe that our role in actively

promoting the growth and diversification of China’s capital markets will enable us to maintain

our relevance in China’s economy long into the future.
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ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
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After a thorough analysis of risk assessment methodologies adopted by leading global banks

and overseas regulators, we developed a two-dimensional scoring system for our own risk

assessment that is focused on (i) the inherent risk (low/medium/high) of our business activities

and (ii) the risk management capabilities (strong/acceptable/weak).  Each score is rated

independently first, and an aggregate rating is determined based on the combination of the

levels of the inherent risk and the quality of our risk management.  A final review and adjustment

on the aggregate ratings will be made after considering the future moving trend of the particular

risk unit (increase/stable/decrease).  The initial assessments are to be performed by individual

departments and the results should be reviewed by ALCO in order to arrive at the final results

and identify the top 10 risk areas that require management’s attention.  A final report, which

includes the projection of overall risk indicators, is then prepared and submitted to our

Governor.  Operational departments are responsible for implementing policies and procedures

to mitigate the risks identified.

R ISK MANAGEMENT�� !
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Level 1:  low inherent risk with strong risk identification and management capabilities

Level 2:  low to medium inherent risk with relatively strong risk identification and management capabilities

Level 3:  medium inherent risk with average risk identification and management capabilities

Level 4:  medium to high inherent risk with weak risk identification and management capabilities

Level 5:  high inherent risk with no risk identification and management capabilities
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Risk Matrix
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In the fourth quarter of 2003, using the above matrix system and other assessment criteria

judgementally, we completed an assessment of credit, market and operational risks in all

areas of the Bank.  All results were summarised in a Risk Profile Report, which was submitted

to ALCO. In addition, we have developed benchmark risk metrics and key performance

indicators in order to evaluate the effectiveness of management’s efforts at managing risk.

CDB is exposed to three principal types of risk - (i)credit risks, (ii)market risks, and (iii)

operational risk.
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CREDIT RISK�� !
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Credit risk is the risk that a borrower may not meet its obligation according to the original

contractual terms of its facility with CDB, and it is the most significant risk faced by CDB.

Given the nature of our lending - large balance, long term and high concentration in a few

industries - effective management of credit risk is our top risk management priority.  Our

credit risk management approach is comprised of the following key elements:

1. Segregation of the underwriting, credit administration and risk monitoring functions.

2. Sound underwriting procedures and quality control standards designed to ensure a

high level of asset quality up-front.

3. Proprietary credit grading techniques and methodologies that provide a consistent

basis for effectively managing our credits.

4. Portfolio exposure and concentration limits to diversify our risk to the extent possible

given the nature of our business.

5. Robust collection efforts and other loss mitigation procedures to resolve non-performing

loans.
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RISK MANAGEMENT�� !

SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

The ultimate responsibility for credit risk management rests with our Governor.  The Asset/

Liability Management and Credit Risk Rating Committees, which are independent of our

business units and report directly to our Governor, have been delegated the authority for

directing our credit risk management activities.  The Credit Risk Management Department,

which reports to the Credit Risk Rating Committee, is responsible for the implementation of

our risk management activities. Through the independence of these functions and their clearly

defined roles, CDB has established clear risk management responsibilities at both the head

office and branch levels.  Transactions are executed in our branches and subject to the

controls put into place by management.
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SOUND UNDERWRITING PROCEDURES AND CREDIT ENHANCEMENT

Because of the relatively large size of individual loans in our loan portfolio, our underwriting

procedures have become very thorough and stringent.  The underwriting of our large loans

also involves industry specialists who are familiar with the unique funding needs and related

risks.  They get involved in the project due diligence process long before the actual credit

application is submitted.  As the approval of local and provincial governments is often required

for large infrastructure loans, CDB also assesses the budgetary capacity of these governments

to support infrastructure development loans in default.  While many loans are not explicitly

guaranteed by any government body, CDB has established mutually productive relationships

with many local and provincial governments that have facilitated the collection of payments

on defaulted loans.

When credit applications are submitted, thorough analysis is performed by an independent

underwriting group.  The underwriting process focuses on the borrower’s past credit

performance, its financial position and debt payment capacity, the proposed credit facility

terms and structure, its industry, local government support (explicit and implicit) and economic

trends.  Of course, collateral and third party guarantees are also considered.  Such analysis

is normally prepared by both the loan officer and industry specialist to ensure its objectivity.

The approval of loans rests with the Credit Risk Rating Committee.
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RISK RATING TOOLS AND METHODOLOGIES

We have started the design of an Internal Based Rating system that includes both borrower

(13 grades) and facility ratings (7 grades) in accordance with the new BASLE Accord.  In

addition, we have also developed industry ratings (10 grades) and geographical ratings (12

grades), as supplements to the borrower and facility ratings.  With the help of international

consultants, we developed a framework for our internal risk rating system.  In addition, we

have completed our preliminary calculation of Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given

Default (LGD).  Of course, the quality of our data will need to be further enhanced.  We intend

to improve the precision of our calculation once the data enhancement is completed.
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LIMIT AND PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

The Bank uses exposure and concentration limits to maintain our credit risk within acceptable

tolerance.  Our portfolio concentration limits address both industry and geographical

concentrations.  These concentration limits are strictly adhered to on a bank-wide basis during

the underwriting process.
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ROBUST COLLECTION EFFORTS AND OTHER LOSS MITIGATION

PROCEDURES

Despite our strong underwriting and monitoring standards, some of our loans, like some of

those at all global banks, will eventually become non-performing due to changes in general

economic conditions, deterioration in the financial strength of an individual borrower, and

other factors.  Over the years, we have developed rigorous and disciplined collection and

recovery procedures.  Notifications on repayments are sent to borrowers days before the

loans are due.  In addition to periodic borrower site visits and financial reviews, loan officers

are required to rate each credit at least quarterly to detect any early signs of deterioration in

a borrower’s ability to repay its loan.  If the repayment ability of a particular borrower becomes

questionable or the payment is past due, the responsible individuals at branch level will work

with the Credit Risk Management Department in the Head Office and take effective actions to

collect on the principal and interest.  Because of our unique status as the key policy bank in

supporting regional economic development, we have been very successful in leveraging our

excellent relationship with local governments in our loan collections.
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OMMP OMMO OMMN OMMM NVVV

�� VVKVB NMMB VVKMB VVKOB UQKPB

�� VVKOB VUKQB VRKMB VNKNB SQKRB

RISK MANAGEMENT�� !

�� !

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&' OMMP�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567+ NO�� !"#$%�

OMMP��� �� !"#$%&' NRO�� !"#�� !"#$ NKPQB��� !"

MKQQ�� !"

ASSET QUALITY

Because of the enhancement of our credit risk management, our asset quality was further

improved in 2003.  We continued to classify our loans according to the 12 categories developed

internally and mapped with the five categories required by the PBOC.  At the end of 2003,

non-performing loans stood at RMB 15.2 billion, or 1.34% of the total loan portfolio, down by

0.44 percentage points from a year ago.

Percentage of payment collection :

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Current year 99.9% 100% 99.0% 99.2% 84.3%

Accumulated 99.2% 98.4% 95.0% 91.1% 64.5%



�� !"#

�����

OMMP OMMO OMMN OMMM NVVV

�� NRO NRV OVU RUO NMNU

�� NKPQB NKTUB PKVSB UKTUB NUKSSB

�� !"#$%&'()

����� ====��OMMP�NO�PN�

�� �� ��� �� �� ��

�� RIPMPKN PQKQ STUKV PISMUKT RIRVMKR NRIONRKS

�� PQKVB MKOB QKRB OPKTB PSKTB NMMB

����� ====��OMMO�NO�PN�

�� �� ��� �� �� ��

�� UIRSNKM NSQKM TVSKN UOPKS RIRTSKN NRIVOMKU

�� RPKUB NKMB RKMB RKOB PRKMB NMMB

�� !E�� !"#F

�����
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�� �� �� �� 

�� UISOR TRKTUB SIOTU TMKOOB

�� OISMQ OOKUUB OIRMQ OUKMMB

����� ! NNIOOV VUKSSB UITUO VUKOOB

�� UU MKTUB TP MKUOB

�� RV MKROB UN MKVNB

�� R MKMQB R MKMRB

����� ! NRO NKPQB NRV NKTUB
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Loan classifications(not including the loans to banks)

(Balances are in billions of RMB)

31 December 2003 31 December 2002

Balance Percentage Balance Percentage

Pass 862.5 75.78% 627.8 70.22%

Special Mention 260.4 22.88% 250.4 28.00%

Sub-total: Performing loans 1,122.9 98.66% 878.2 98.22%

Substandard 8.8 0.78% 7.3 0.82%

Doubtful 5.9 0.52% 8.1 0.91%

Loss 0.5 0.04% 0.5 0.05%

Sub-total: non-performing 15.2 1.34% 15.9 1.78%

Total 1,138.1 100% 894.1 100%

RISK MANAGEMENT�� !

Non-performing loan at 31 December

(Balances are in billions of RMB)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Balance 15.2 15.9 29.8 58.2 101.8

Ratio 1.34% 1.78% 3.96% 8.78% 18.66%

Non-performing loans by industry

(Balances are in millions of RMB)                 As at 31 December 2003

Power Road constructionPetrochemical Railway Others Total

Balance 5,303.1 34.4 678.9 3,608.7 5,590.5 15,215.6

Percentage 34.9% 0.2% 4.5% 23.7% 36.7% 100%

(Balances are in millions of RMB)                 As at 31 December 2002

Power Road constructionPetrochemical Railway Others Total

Balance 8,561.0 164.0 796.1 823.6 5,576.1 15,920.8

Percentage 53.8% 1.0% 5.0% 5.2% 35.0% 100%



�� ! MARKET RISK
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�� !"#$%&'()*+*,-

Market risk is the risk of loss caused by changes in prices, principally influenced by interest

and foreign exchange rates of financial instruments.  The ALCO has the primary responsibility

in managing the market risk, including liquidity risk, at CDB.  Successfully managing market

related risks requires consistently maintaining acceptable levels of risk exposure while meeting

other business and operational objectives.

�� !

�� !"#��$%&'()*+,��-./01234567289:;<=>2?@A

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'

�� !"��� !�� !"#$�� �� !"#$%�� !"#$%&"#'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./OMMP���� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123�� !"#$%&�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&#'()*+�

���� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+,

�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*$

�� !"#$%&'OMMP�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-.JNKVT���� !"

NMMÄé��� !"#$%&'()*+ SKSO���� !"#$% OVKQV��

�� !"#$%&"#'()*+,-./%01"#234"#567�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./



Annual Report 2003 China Development Bank

9392

�� �� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'(

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*"+,-./0123

�� !"#$�� !�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in the level of interest rates or changes

in the shape of yield curves that could adversely affect the market value of our financial

instruments and future earnings of CDB.  There are four types of interest rate risk faced by

CDB: (i) replacement (or duration mismatching) risk, (ii) yield curve risk, (iii) basis point risk,

and (iv) option risk.

In order to prepare for the emerging challenges related to the opening of China’s financial

markets, ALCO further strengthened our analysis capabilities on the macro economy,

government policies on currencies and interest rate movements.  In addition, we developed

an advanced measurement system that includes benchmarking indicators and limits for interest

rate risk management.  Through this measurement system, ALCO is able to continuously

monitor, measure and report on these risks.  In addition, ALCO prepared the “Implementation

Guidance of Interest Rate Risk Management of CDB” manual to support the implementation

of risk management processes based on the related principles developed by the BASLE

Committee.

Our management of interest rate risk is achieved primarily through gap analysis performed

on sensitivity, duration and fair value.  By the end of 2003, our duration gap stood at -1.97

years.  If the level of interest rate increases by 100 basis points, total net interest income will

increase by about 6.62% and net assets will increase by about 29.49%.

CDB enters into interest rate swaps and collars for the purpose of hedging the long-term

RISK MANAGEMENT�� !



fixed rate debt denominated in foreign currency.  We do not engage in such transactions for

speculative purposes.  These derivative transactions expose CDB to additional credit risk,

which represents potential costs to replace the derivative contracts if the counter parties fail

to perform their obligations.  This risk is monitored on a continuous basis with reference to

the current fair value, the notional amount of the contracts and the liquidity of the market.  To

control the level of credit risk taken, the Bank assesses the credit risk of its counterparties,

using the same techniques used in our lending activities.  In the future, we will increase the

use of derivative transactions to improve our management of interest rate risks.
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CURRENCY RISK

Currency risk is the risk of loss arising from the fluctuation of exchange rates. Our activities in

foreign currencies have been limited, and the majority of the foreign currency transactions

are in US dollars or hedged to US dollars, if in other foreign currencies. In recent years, the

PBOC has maintained a stable exchange rate with USD. Therefore, we do not believe our

exposure to currency risk is significant.  Should the current practice of our government in this
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area change, our risk to foreign exchange could be increased.

CDB enters into currency forwards and swap agreements principally at the request of our

customers.  To hedge the potential risks of these transactions, we enter into similar agreements

with other counter-parties.  In addition, the management seeks to minimise the Bank’s exposure

to interest rate and foreign exchange fluctuations by matching the maturities of its loans and

guarantees to those of the liabilities denominated in the same currencies.

�� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./*01,23456789&,:;/<=&,>;?

�� !"#$%&
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to fund its current obligations and operations

in the most cost efficient manner.

Based on the key principles and practice guide on liquidity management from BASLE, we

developed a mechanism that effectively monitors the short-, medium- and long-term liquidity

risks and completed the Guidance on Liquidity Risk Management for CDB, as well as created

the necessary early warning tools in 2003.

Our primary funding source is our bond issuance in the domestic bond market.  Due to our

quasi-sovereign rating, we are able to maintain our debt issuance cost at relatively low levels.

With the current market condition and our successful track record, we do not foresee difficulties

in raising the finances in the near term.  In addition to the bond market, we have other financing

sources such as the inter-bank market, borrowing from the PBOC, and overseas capital

market.

We periodically perform a maturity analysis of the Bank’s assets and liabilities and future

commitments required to assess the needs for additional funding and to determine the best

source and cost of the funds.  This analysis serves as the basis of our bank-wide management

of liquidity risk.  At the same time, we calculate the maturity gap on the average years

outstanding for loans and bonds issuance.  Through the enhancement of our gap analysis,

Bank’s average maturity gap has been decreased from -1.15 years at the beginning of the

year to -0.51 years at end of 2003.
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Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from failed internal control processes and/or systems,

human factors, and/or external events.  Operational risk is inherent in all aspects of a business

and covers a wide range of issues.  Our risk management efforts in this area are focused on

seven key elements of operational risk - i) internal policies risk, ii) regulatory risk, iii) legal risk,

iv) settlement risk, v) IT system risk,  vi) employee risk,  and vii) external risk.  We completed

an assessment of these seven risk elements during 2003, and developed a prioritised list of

issues that need to be resolved in order to reduce our operational risk exposure to acceptable

levels.

R ISK MANAGEMENT�� !

�� ! OPERATIONAL RISK



Management maintains an internal control framework designed to identify, measure, monitor

and manage all significant operational risks on an ongoing basis.  CDB continuously assesses

its operational and financial reporting infrastructure to ensure it is adequate to handle emerging

business and financial reporting developments, and we have been working hard to make

further improvement every year.

CDB mitigates the risk of human error by adequately training our employees, documenting

and adhering to comprehensive policies and procedures as well as by regularly evaluating

the effectiveness of our internal control structure.  As an integrated component of the Bank’s

internal control, our Internal Audit Department regularly monitors the compliance with

established policies and procedures.
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Without a world-class professional team, we can never deliver the services required by our

valued customers.  Therefore, bank management has placed training and education as the

most important tasks on their agenda.  In 2003, we implemented  a number of initiatives to

prepare our staff for the challenges faced by CDB, focusing on international management

techniques.  We continued to offer educational opportunities at universities, both in China

and abroad.

OMMP����  !"�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�� !"#�� !"

�� !"#N��� !"#$%&'(���� !"#�� !"�� !"#�� !
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BUILD A WINNING TEAM�� !"#$

�� !"# HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
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Our commitment to global best practices and the development of a world-class financial

institution  prompted a number of changes in our human resources management.  In 2003,

we made significant progress in a number of areas - (i) We completed a modification of the

Bank’s organization structure to support our restructuring plan, which included outsourcing a

portion of our logistical services and automation of certain back-office support functions.  (ii)

We further enhanced our employment contract system up to the level of Director General.  All

key positions were filled after a fair and open selection process that was exclusively based on

merit and competency.  We will also implement a mechanism to enable us to adequately

allocate resources according to job requirements and maximise the potential of our employees

at the same time, and (iii) We further improved our compensation system to align pay with

performance at the department levels in both Head Office and branches.  Similarly,

performance indicators were developed based on leading practices by global banks as well

as the special needs of a development financing institution in China.
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CDB management is committed to creating a well-balanced incentive system that meets the

market demand for all of our employees.  In 2003, with the help of international consultants,

we started a project that included the evaluation of job positions at the various levels, the

design of the performance measurement indicators and the determination of employees’

compensation that are consistent with his/her position and performance.  We recognize that

the implementation of any changes in human resource management takes a long time, and

we are currently reviewing and communicating the results of the studies with our employees

in order to obtain their agreement to move forward.

BUILD A WINNING TEAM�� !"#$

Pm�� !"���� �� !"

3P - POSITION, PERFORMANCE AND PAY
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The coming year, 2004, will be the tenth year of Bank’s history.  Management believes that

this is an appropriate time to take stock of our record in fulfilling our primary objective -

supporting the Chinese government’s infrastructure development initiatives and seeking new

ways to help lead China’s economic growth.  It may also be time to re-examine our business

priorities in this rapidly changing environment, while maintaining the focus on rasion d’etre.
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The need for improvement in management capabilities defines our training scope.  Our

business departments have started the process of benchmarking practices in their areas

against international best practices.  The results show that although we are strong in a number

of areas, we are lagging in general management capabilities.  As such, our training programs

have been designed to better support the Bank’s current business focus and new products.

�� !"#$ BANK HISTORY EDUCATION

�� !"#$%&'(

TRAINING TARGETED ON INTERNATIONAL
MANAGEMENT TECHNIQUES
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

�� !
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�� ! 2003�� !"#$%&!"'()*%+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./
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�� !"�� !�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'(

�� ! 2003� 12� 31�� !"#$%& 2003�� !"#$%&'()*+,

�� !

2004� 3� 1�

�� !�

�� !"# 18�
�� 1�
�� 

�� 100020
�� !"#$

�� +86(10)65612233
�� +86(10)85299000

Business is undertaken in the registered name of PricewaterhouseCoopers China Limited, incorporated in Bermuda with Limited Liability.
Registered address is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, Bermuda.



�� !"#

2003�� !"#$
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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����� �� !"��� 

�� ! 4 59,167 51,668

�� ! 4 (34,747) (32,206)

�� !"# 4 24,420 19,462

�� !" 123 68

�� !" (7) (13)

�� !"#$ 116 55

�� ! 5 1,644 1,831

�� ! 15 (821) (2,391)

�� !"# 6 236 266

�� ! 25,595 19,223

�� !"# 13,14 (2,829) 1,230

�� !"# 7 (4,299) (3,760)

�� ! 18,467 16,693

�� 8 (5,255) (4,774)

�� 13,212 11,919

�� 2003 2002
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

�� !"#

2003� 12� 31�� !"#$%
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#�$%& !"#'()*+

����� �� !"��� 

�� 2003 2002

��

�� !"#$%& 9 16,143 7,354
�� !"# 10 2,085 913
�� !" 12 821 680
�� !"# - 9,228
�� �� 13 1,120,885 876,132
�� ! 14 103,016 103,046
��

- �� !" 15 28,152 34,452
- �� !"# 15 1,738 497
�� !"�� 16 2,412 2,039
�� !" 17 3,608 4,566
�� ! 18 2,135 2,804
�� ! 1,280,995 1,041,711

�� !"#$%

��

�� !"# 1,344 1,874
�� ! 19 65,734 40,005
�� !"#$ 20 50,560 44,603
�� !" 12 448 672
�� ! 21 1,054,970 860,543
�� ! 22 18,510 18,613
�� ! 1,191,566 966,310

�� !"

�� ! 23 50,000 49,050
�� ! 23 - 134
�� !"

�� !"#$ 24 2,702 946
�� !" 24 1,806 703
�� !"#$ 24 653 -
�� ! 25 34,268 24,568
�� !"#$ 89,429 75,401

�� !"#$%&' 1,280,995 1,041,711
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#�$%& !"#'()*+

����� �� !"��� 

�� !"#$%&'(

�� ! 18,467 16,693
�� !�

�� !"#$% 13,14 2,829 (1,230)
�� !"# (17) -
�� !"#$% 1,251 2,252
�� !"#$%&' (421) 139
�� !" 157 105
�� !"#$% - 292
�� !"#$%& 1,620 615
�� !"#$ 5 (1,644) (1,831)
�� !"#$%�

�� !"#$%&'( (12) -
�� !" (141) -
�� !"# 9,228 (4,838)
�� ! 311 2,447
�� (235,253) (148,253)
�� ! (635) 700
�� ! 1,142 (2,130)
�� !" (224) -
�� !"# (530) 1,171
�� ! 25,729 7,927
�� ! 1,692 80
�� !"#$ (5,664) (5,476)
�� !"#$%&'()* (182,115) (131,337)

�� !"# /�� !"#$
�� !"#$%&'( (35,959) (389)
�� !�"#$% 28,584 890
�� !"#$ 5 1,644 1,831
�� !"#$%&"#'()*+ (508) (519)
�� !"#$%&"#'()*+ 74 -
�� !"#$%&'()* (6,165) 1,813

�� !"# /�� !"#$
�� !"#$%&'() 561,131 243,936
�� !"#$%&'() (363,547) (114,297)
�� ! 645 1,601

�� !"#$%&'()* 198,229 131,240

�� 2003 2002



�� !"#�$%& !"#'()*+

����� �� !"��� 

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%& (� )
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� ��!"#$%&' 9,949 1,716

�� !" !#$%&' 11 8,086 6,370

�� !" !#$%&' 11 18,035 8,086

�� !"#$%&

�� !" 57,757 51,075
�� !" (30,756) (33,012)

�� !"#$%&'()'*+�

�� !�"#$�%&'( 1,924 2,621
�� !�"#$�%&'( (13,901) -
�� !"#$%&'() (648) (1,764)
�� !"#$%&'()* (107) -
�� !"#$%&'()'*+,- (12,732) 857

�� 2003 2002
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 �� !"��#$

�� !"#(�� !�� !)�� !"#$%&(�� !�� !)�� !"#$%&'

�� �� 1994� 7� 1���� !"#$��� !"#$%&'()*+ 29��

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123)456 789:;<=>?@A�� !

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%�� !"#$ !%

�� !"#$%&'�  ��� !"#$%&'()* +,-./0+*1234�� 

�� �� !"#$�%&'()*+,�� �� !"#$%&'()

�� 2003� 12� 31�� �� ! 4,224�� (2002��3,780�)�

�� !"#$%&'"#()*+,�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./!"01'(2

�� !"#$%&'()*

2 �� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'(�

A �� !

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'�� �� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$��%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.

�� !"#$%&'($%)*+�� !"#$%&'()#*+,-./012#$3

���� !"��#$%&'()*+,-./01"23%,-45%6789:;"<

���� !"!#�� !"#$%&'()*+,-. /01234+56789�� 

�� !"#$%&'��� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()



2 �� !"# (� )

B �� !

(1) �� 

�� !�� !"#$%&'%()*+,-./012345�� !"#$%#$&'(

�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0*+

�� !"�#$%&'(

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'��� !"#$%&'()*+

���� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*+��� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+,-��

�� !"#$%&'()*+#,-./0123�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0

�� ! "#$%&'()*+

(2) �� !

�� !"#$%&'()*�+,-�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01

�� !"#$%&'() *+,-./012345�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.��/0'123

�� !"#$%&' 20%� 50%�� !"#"$%&'()*+,-."$/01234

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789:;<=> ��� !"#$

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()"*+,-./012

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2 �� !"# (� )

B �� !(�)

(3) �� !

�� !"#$%&'()'*+,�-'.

�� !" !#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.)

�� !"#$%&'()*+, -./0123456789:;<=>� "#?=./

�� !�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./(0123%4567#89:;<+=>?

C �� !"#

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234(��

�� �)��� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012�� !"#$%&'( )*+

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$%��� !"#$

���� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*"#+,-.�� !"#$%&!"'()*+,-./012

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�

�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01,2

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�/01�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012

�� !"#$%&'(�� �� !"#$%� 39�� !�� !""#$%&'()

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'�()*+',

�� !"#$%&'()*+ 26�� 



�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2 �� !"# (� )

D �� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./(0123456)789:;<=6>�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*+�,-.

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.*+/012345

E �� !"#$

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*!"+,-./0123456+789.:

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$% &'()*+,-�� !./0�� !"#

F �� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0

�� !�� !"#$ %&'()*+,�� !"#$%&

G �� !"#$

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'��"#$()*�� !"#$%&�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#�� !"�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'()*

�� !

H �� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0��123456.%&'789:,-..;<=

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+,-*+.-/�� !"

�� !"�#
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&'()*#+,-./-0123/45678(�� !�� !"#)�

�� !"#$%&'()*+�,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"

�� !"#$%&'(

I �� ��!"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+$,-��./+$0123�4567*89:;0<=>

���� !"��#$%&'()*+,-./��0 !"#$%&'(/123�� �

�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&"'()*+,-.�/01�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$�� !"#�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'$%()*+,�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*+!,+-�� !"#$%&'(!)*+�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'()*+,&,!-

�� !"#�� !"#$%$&'()*+,�� !"#$%&'()*+,-&./-

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.+/"01

�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'�� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012/34567�� !"#$%�&'()*+

2 �� !"# (� )

H �� !"(�)



�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789:;2<=�>?@ABCDE

�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*+,"#-./�� !"#$%&'()#*+,

�� !"#$%&'(

J ��

�� !"#$%&'(��� !"#$%&'"#(�� !"#$%&�'( !)*�

�� !"# $%& '()*+,-��� !"#$%&'()*&+,-�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'(#)*+�� !"#$%&'()*+,

�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+, !-./0123'(456789:�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%& '()*+,(-./0123�� !"#$%&!

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567 89:;<=�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*+#,-./012$345�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+,-#./01234567

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567839:;<=

2 �� !"# (� )

I �� ��!"#$(�)
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&"'&()*+,-./�012�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&�� !"#�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.*/01�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&%'()

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'!()*+,"-&'./!0

�� !"#$%&'()&&*+#,-."/�� !"#$%$&'()$*+,-./

�� !"#$%&'()*!+$,-./0)*1234$%5678

�� !"#$%&'()*+,)*-,.�� !"#$%��&%'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�234�� !"#$%&'()*+,-. 

���� !"#$ %&'()*+,-./012345678 9:;<=

K �� !

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'(#!)*+,-!./0

�� !"#$%�� !&'()*+,-'./01+23456789:+;<�� !

�� !"# 5%��� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�

�� !"# 30 - 35�

�� ! 5 - 11�

�� !"# 5�

�� ! 6�

�� !"#$%&'(

2 �� !"# (� )

J ��(�)



�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

K �� !(�)

�� !"#$ %&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+#,-&'./�� 

�� !"#$��%�� !"#$#%&'()*+,-./0123�� !"#$ %

�� !"#$%&'()$%*+,-./012

L �� !"

�� !"#$%&'�()�#*+ !,-(./0�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.

�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()"�*+,-./012

� 2003� 12� 31���� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*+,$-.

��

M �� ��!"#

�� !"#$��%��&'()*+,-./03�� !"#$%&'(�� !"��

�� !"#$%&'("#)

N �� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-+./0�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./ 0��

�� !"#$%#&'()*+�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*!"+

2 �� !"# (� )
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

O �� !"#

�� !"#$%&'&()*+,-./01234567�� !"#$%&'()*+,

�� �� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

P �� !"

�� !"#$%"&'()*+,-./01234567*879:;<=>?@"A33%

�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,- ./012345627�� !"#$

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123425678.9:�� !"#$

���� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0

�� !"#$%&'()*+,$-.�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'

Q �� !

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&(�� !"#$!%)�� !"#$%&'(�

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*"+,-.')/0#1)23� 4567

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()

2 �� !"# (� )



�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

R �� !

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&�'()*�� !"#$% &'()*+% &',-. 500�� 

S �� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234536/789�� !"#$%�� !

�� !"#$%&'(

T �� !

�� !"#$%&'()�*+,-'./01'23456�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#$%&'(")*+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./,-#012+34

�� !�� !"#$%&'()*

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*#+,-.

U �� !

�� !"#$%&'() !*+,-"./012345$67

2 �� !"# (� )
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 �� !"#

A �� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012�� !"#�$%&'()*+,-./+,

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345&6786)9:;��

�� !"#$%&'�()*+,-./"#$01234�� !"#$�%&'()*

���� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#$%&'()�*+,-./012�� !"#$%&'()%&*�� !�

�� !"#$%&'(")*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01'(234

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'( )*+

B �� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567��89:;#&'<�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'&()*+�� 

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&"#'()*+,-�./01"#!234�� �

�� !"#$%&"#�'(')*+,-"#(./012

�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&�� !"#�$%&'()*+,-./0123

�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'�()*+,-./01�� !"#$%&'()*+,$-./0

���� !"#$%&'()#*+,-�� �� !"#$�%&'()*+,-./0

�� !"

�� !

�� !"#$%"&'()*+,-./01"234�� !"#$%&�'()*+, 

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()



�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

3 �� !"# (� )

B �� !(�)

�� !"#$%&'()*+,�

*  �� !"#$%��� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� �� !"#

** ��� !"#$��� �� !�� �� �� �� �� !"#

*** �� !"#$%��� �� �� �� �� �� !�� �� �� �� 

�� !"#

���� !"#$%&' ()*+,-./0123(4.5�� !"#$%&'()*

���� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567��  !"#$%&'()*

�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#$%&'("#)*+�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%�&' !()*�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,�-./0123

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234�$()"56,-7��

�� !"#$ %&'()*+,� !"#-�� !"#$%&'()�*+,

�� ��% �� ��%

��

�� !"# * 607,669 53 478,226 53

��� !" ** 284,295 25 228,736 26

�� !"# *** 246,135 22 187,091 21

�� ! 1,839 - 2,150 -

�� ! 2,313 - 1,655 -

1,142,251 100 897,858 100

2003 2002
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

3 �� !"# (� )

B �� !(�)

�� !"#$%&'()*�

�� ��%

��

�� �� 340,745 30
�� !" 235,192 21
�� �� !"#$%&' 182,506 16
�� !" 118,302 10
�� !"#$ 68,892 6
�� !"�#$%&'( 42,724 4
��� ! " 40,019 4
�� 109,719 9
�� ! 1,839 -
�� ! 2,313 -

1,142,251 100

2003

�� ��%

��

�� 325,224 36
�� ! 178,271 20
�� 117,630 13
�� 115,636 13
�� 42,237 5
��� 35,665 4
�� 26,288 3
�� 53,102 6
�� ! 2,150 -
�� ! 1,655 -

897,858 100

2002



�� !"#$%&'(�

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

3 �� !"# (� )

B �� !(�)

C �� !

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$��%&'()*+,-./0�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$�%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./#$0123456789:';<=>%0?@A

���� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'%()�� !"#$

�� �� !"#$%&'()*

D �� !

�� !"#$%&'()$%*�� !"#�� �� !"#$%�&'(�� !"#

�� !"�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*"+,-./#$0�1

���� !"#$%&'()*+

�� ��% �� ��%

��

�� !"# 1,089,153 95 870,117 97

�� !"# 31,360 3 8,732 1

�� !"# 17,586 2 15,204 2

�� ! 1,839 - 2,150 -

�� ! 2,313 - 1,655 -

1,142,251 100 897,858 100

2003 2002
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�� ! FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%#&'()* +,-./012�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0

�� �

3 �� !"# (� )

D �� !(�)

�� �� �� ! ��

2003� 12� 31�� 

���

�� !"#$%& 18,204 5 19 18,228

�� 1,051,480 34,045 35,360 1,120,885

�� ! 103,016 - - 103,016

�� 27,531 2,359 - 29,890

�� �� 8,361 108 507 8,976

�� ! 1,208,592 36,517 35,886 1,280,995

���

�� !"#$%& 65,813 1,248 17 67,078

�� !"#$ 1,019 31,770 17,771 50,560

�� ! 1,041,648 10,999 2,323 1,054,970

�� �� 6,708 3,723 8,527 18,958

�� ! 1,115,188 47,740 28,638 1,191,566

�� !"#$% 93,404 (11,223) 7,248 89,429

�� ! 737,166 14,890 6,163 758,169

2002� 12� 31�� 

�� ! 984,607 36,709 20,395 1,041,711

�� ! 915,411 33,147 17,752 966,310

�� !"#$% 69,196 3,562 2,643 75,401

�� ! 287,742 21,658 - 309,400



E �� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234!"56 789�� !"#$%&'�

�� !"#$%&�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*#$+,-�./0123

�� !"#�� !"�� !"#�$%&'()*+,-�� �� !"#$%&'(

�� !"�#�� !"#$%&'()�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01

�� !

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'( !)* 10%�

F �� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$%&�� !�"#$%&'()�� !

�� �� !"#$%&'()$*+,'-./01�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"

�� !"#$%&'��()* +,-.'/01.!" 23456789:;<=

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012�� !"#$%&'( )*+,-./�� 0

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

3 �� !"# (� )
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�
�
 
!
"
#

20
03
�
�
 
!
"
#
$
%

(�
�
 
!
"
#
$
�
�
 
!
"
#
$
%
&
'
(
)

3
�
�
 
!
"
#

(�
)

F
�
�
 
!
"
(�

)

1-
3
�
�

3-
12

�
�

1-
5 
�

5-
10
 �

10
-1
5 
�

15
 �
�
 

�
�

20
03

�
12

�
31
�
�
 

�
�
:

�
�
 
!
"
#
$
%
&

18
,2
28

-
-

-
-

-
18
,2
28

�
�

14
,5
81

80
,5
43

42
0,
85
4

33
7,
37
7

20
2,
47
7

65
,0
53

1,
12
0,
88
5

�
�
 
!

3,
01
6

-
-

10
0,
00
0

-
-

10
3,
01
6

�
�

26
,7
61

21
2

1,
14
9

1,
76
8

-
-

29
,8
90

�
�
 
�
�

41
5

53
4

4,
62
8

1,
17
5

7
2,
21
7

8,
97
6

�
�
 
!

63
,0
01

81
,2
89

42
6,
63
1

44
0,
32
0

20
2,
48
4

67
,2
70

1,
28
0,
99
5

�
�
:

�
�
 
!
"
#
$
 
%
!
&

63
,8
70

1,
20
8

2,
00
0

-
-

-
67
,0
78

�
�
 
!
"
#
$

2,
93
7

2,
29
9

21
,2
31

15
,1
39

8,
31
5

63
9

50
,5
60

�
�
 
!

34
,0
67

87
,1
65

34
6,
48
9

53
1,
39
4

-
55
,8
55

1,
05
4,
97
0

�
�
 
�
�

9,
82
3

8,
32
9

75
8

34
13

1
18
,9
58

�
�
 
!

11
0,
69
7

99
,0
01

37
0,
47
8

54
6,
56
7

8,
32
8

56
,4
95

1,
19
1,
56
6

�
�
 
!
"
#

(4
7,
69
6)

(1
7,
71
2)

56
,1
53

(1
06
,2
47
)

19
4,
15
6

10
,7
75

89
,4
29

20
02

�
12

�
31
�
�
 

�
�
 
!

26
,5
53

20
,3
63

14
7,
15
2

49
1,
14
9

23
4,
25
4

12
2,
24
0

1,
04
1,
71
1

�
�
 
!

72
,7
66

17
1,
27
5

22
6,
95
8

43
6,
85
7

11
,3
76

47
,0
78

96
6,
31
0

�
�
 
!
"
#

(4
6,
21
3)

(1
50
,9
12
)

(7
9,
80
6)

54
,2
92

22
2,
87
8

75
,1
62

75
,4
01
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�� !"#$�%!&'(�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�� !"#$%&

�� !"�� !"#$%&'()*

�� !"#�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234.567689:5;�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234)+56�� �� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01$2'134

G �� !"��#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789:(;/<23=>?<@��

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-."/0123�

(1) �� !"#$%&'�� !"#$�� !"#$�� !"�� !"�� !"

�� !"�� !"

�� !"#$%&"#'()*+,-./0 12�� !"#$�%&!"'

(2) ��

�� !"#$%&'()*%+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$"%&'()*+,-./01234/5�� !"#�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()*+

(3) �� !

�� !"#$%&'("#)*+,-./012"#3456789:;!<�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.*/0�1�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

3 �� !"# (� )

F �� !"(�)
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�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

(4) �� !

�� !"# !$%#&'()*+,-./+01 2�� !"#$%&'()*%+,

�� !"#$%&'()*

(5) �� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&'(&)*%+,-./01-�234�� !"#$%&'()*+,

�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*%+,-.�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$�%&'()*+,�-./01-2345

2003�� 2002� 12� 31���� !"#$%&'()$%*+,-./01234�

3 �� !"# (� )

G �� !"��#$%&'()(�)

�� ! �� !
2003 2002 2003 2002

�� !"

�� !"# 1,738 497 1,739 507

�� 1,120,885 876,132 1,129,928 884,949

�� !"

�� ! 65,734 40,005 66,549 40,005

�� !"#$ 50,560 44,603 56,227 52,237

�� ! 1,054,970 860,543 1,059,958 863,794



4 �� !"#

5 �� !

6 �� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567.89:;<=>?."#@AB

178�� (2002���� 218�� )�

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2003 2002

�� !

�� !"# 202 117

�� 56,565 49,245

�� ! 2,250 2,250

�� 150 56

59,167 51,668

�� !

�� !"#$%& " 387 254

�� !"#$ 2,918 2,658

�� ! 31,438 29,294

�� 4 -

34,747 32,206

�� !"# 24,420 19,462

2003 2002

�� !" 1,644 1,831
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7 �� !"#

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� ! 398 309

�� !"#$% - 292

�� !" 237 192

�� !" 88 93

�� !"#$ 171 105

�� 58 67

�� !"#$ 2,938 2,441

�� 409 261

4,299 3,760

2003 2002

8 �� 

�� !" 4,233 2,506

�� !"(�� 17) 1,022 2,268

5,255 4,774

�� !"#$%&'()*+",-./"01�� !"#$�

�� ! 18,467 16,693

�� 33%�� !"#$� !(2002�33%) 6,094 5,509

�� !"#$%&'(�

�� !""#$%&'()*+,� (201) (124)

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.� (743) (743)

�� !�"#$%&'()*+,-./&!�" 105 92

�� - 40

5,255 4,774

2003 2002

2003 2002



9 �� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� - 1

�� !"# 16,143 7,353

�� !"#!"$%&'(�� 11) 16,143 7,354

10 �� !"#

2003 2002

�� !"#

�� !"#!"$%&'(�� 11) 1,892 732

�� !"# 193 181

2,085 913

2003 2002

11 �� ��!"#

�� !"#$%& 16,143 7,354

�� !"# 1,892 732

18,035 8,086

2003 2002

�� !"#$% !& !'()*+�
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12 �� !"#�� $%

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"�

�� !"#$�� ! 314 -

�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$ 379 547

�� !" - 92

�� !" 128 8

�� !"# - 33

821 680

�� !"�

�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$ 379 547

�� !" 69 92

�� !"# - 33

448 672

13 �� ��!"#$

�� !"#$%�

2003 2002

�� ! 1,839 2,150

�� 1,138,099 894,053

�� ! 2,313 1,655

1,142,251 897,858

���� !"# (21,366) (21,726)

1,120,885 876,132

2003 2002



�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

13 �� ��!"#$ (� )

�� !"#

�� ! 21,726 27,586

�� ! / (��) 2,164 (1,230)

�� ! (2,583) (4,983)

�� ! 59 353

�� ! 21,366 21,726

14 �� !

2003 2002

2003 2002

�� !"#$��%&'()*(�� !�� !"#)�� !�" #$%&'()1,000

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� 1999�

12�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123 1,000�� ��� !"#$%$&'(

�� 1,000�� !"#$%&'()*+, -./�� !"#$%&�� ! 2.25%�

�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*+,%&-

�� 100,000 100,000

�� !"�� !"#$ 665�� (2002���)�� 3,016 3,046

103,016 103,046
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�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

1999�11�20���� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,1,000�� !"#$

�� !�� !"#$%&

2000� 7� 15���� !"#$%&�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&'()2001�10�8�� !�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234056)789(���2001�152�)���

�� !"#$%&'()*+(,

�� !"#$%&'()"#$%*+,- 3,118�� (2002���� 2,484�� )��

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012*3456789:;5<=>?@ABCDE

�� 665�� (2002���)�� !"2,453��  (2002���� 2,484�� )���

�� !"#$%&' 563��  (2002���� 563�� )�

15 ��

14 �� ! (� )

*�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123

2003 2002

�� !"�

�� !"�� !

�� !" - 40

�� !"# 7,395 100

�� !" *��� !" 20,757 34,312

28,152 34,452

�� !"#�

�� !"�� !"#�� 1,738 497

�� ! 29,890 34,949



**�� !"#$!%&' ()�*+, 862�� (2002��� 2,391�� )�

�� 2003� 12� 31���� !"#$%&!"'()*+,-./01

�� !"#$%& '()*+,-./01*234567�� !"#$%&'()*+

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,&-./01234"5

�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01#20345�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234.567�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*%+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�� �� !"#$%

�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&'��()*1,175�� (2002��)��� !"#$%&'() *+

�� !"#$%&'�()&'*�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�� !"#

�� !"

�� !"#$%�

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

15 �� (� )

�� !" �� !"# ��

�� ! 34,452 497 34,949

�� ! 36,613 1,241 37,854

�� !(�� !") (42,092) - (42,092)

�� ! ** 421 - 421

�� !"# ** (1,242) - (1,242)

�� ! 28,152 1,738 29,890
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16 �� !

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%�

�� �� �� ��
�� �� ! �� �� ��

�� !"#

2003� 1� 1�� 1,637 20 262 151 2,070

���� ! 507 2 46 77 632

���� ! (70) (1) (5) (3) (79)

2003� 12� 31�� 2,074 21 303 225 2,623

�� !

2003� 1� 1�� 86 5 105 46 242

���� ! 44 5 56 44 149

���� ! (1) - (1) (3) (5)

2003� 12� 31�� 129 10 160 87 386

��

2003� 12� 31�� 1,945 11 143 138 2,237

2002� 12� 31�� 1,551 15 157 105 1,828

2003 2002

�� !"# 2,623 2,070

�� ! (386) (242)

�� 2,237 1,828

�� ! 175 211

2,412 2,039



17 �� !

�� !"#$%&'�

�� !" /(��)�� !"#$�

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

2003 2002

�� ! 4,566 6,834

�� !"# (1,022) (2,268)

�� (�� 23) 64 -

�� ! 3,608 4,566

2003 2002

�� !"# 2,840 3,743

�� !"# 1,236 1,330

�� !"#$%&' 220 -

�� !"#$% 413 415

�� ! 54 56

�� !"#$%&' (19) (2)

�� !"#$%&'()*+, (603) (522)

�� !"#$%&' (553) (491)

�� 20 37

3,608 4,566
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�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

17 �� ! (� )

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01�

�� !"# 903 2,397

�� !"# 94 (303)

�� !"#$%&' (220) -

�� !"#$% 2 (96)

�� ! 2 -

�� !"#$%&' 17 72

�� !"#$%&'()*+, 81 79

�� !"#$%&' 62 111

�� !"#$ 81 8

1,022 2,268

18 �� !

2003 2002

19 �� !

2003 2002

�� !"#$%&'( 1,828 1,583

�� !"#$%& - 363

�� 307 858

2,135 2,804

2003 2002

�� ! 62,205 39,591

�� ! 2,787 411

�� !" 742 3

65,734 40,005



20 �� !"#$

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"# -�� ! 39,956 36,303

�� !"# 5,304 4,000

�� !"#$%&' 3,512 2,593

�� !"# 1,788 1,359

�� !"#$%& - 348

50,560 44,603

2003 2002

21 �� !

�� !"#$%&'()*"#+%,-"#./01234"#5678�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%�&'(�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&�'()*+,-

�� !"#$%&%'()*+,-./0"#1234*5678759:"#5;<=

�� !"#$%&'()* 3.31(2002:3.32) 1,041,648 851,296

�� !"#$%&'() 3.65(2002:�) 4,138 -

�� !"#$%&'() 6.92(2002:6.92) 9,184 9,247

1,054,970 860,543

�� !(%) 2003 2002
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�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

22 �� !

�� ! 11,759 10,095

�� !" 4,143 5,574

�� !" 1,075 1,079

�� 1,533 1,865

18,510 18,613

2003 2002

23 �� !

2003 2002

*�� !"#�$%&'500�� �� !"�#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,�� !"#$ %&'($ )*+�� 

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./(+!012�� 2003� 12� 31�� �� !"

�� !"#$��%

**�� !2003 �� !"#$% &'(!)*+,�� !"#$%&'(134�� !

�� !"#$%&'(64�� !"#$%&'(�� 17)�� !"198�� !"#$%

�� ! 49,050 47,449

�� ! * 752 1,601

�� !"#$%&'()*�� ** 198 -

�� ! 50,000 49,050

2003 2002



24 �� !"

�� !"# 2003�� !"#$%�� ! 2002�� !"#$%&'()*+ 25%��

���� !"#$%&'(%)'*�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

�� !�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./

�� !"#$%�� 2003�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./653�� !"#$%

�� !"#$%&�'

��2003�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.�� !"#$%2003�� !"#$%"&$'

25 �� !"#

�� 2002�� !"#$�� !"#$%&' 119�� !"#$%&'(

26 �� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()�

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345"#6�� !"#$%!&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,$-.'()*+/012�� !"#$%&'() *+

��(�� !"#$%&'"#)�� !"#$%(�� !"#$%&')��� !"#$%

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�123"4567�� !"#

�� !"#$%&'()*�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01234567

�� !"#$%�� "&'$(��!"&'$)*+,�� !"#$%&'()*+,

�� !"#$%�&'#(�&)#*+,-./012345

�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()
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�� !"#

2003�� !"#$%&'
(�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()

�� 2003� 12� 31�� �� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$�� !"#$%

� 63���� !"# 2014� 9�� !"#$%&%'

�� !"#$%& '()*+�,-./01234$ !"#56789:;�� !"

�� !"#$%&'()*+',$-./01�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0,

���� !"#$%&'()*+,-.//,$012345�� !"#$%&'(#$

�� �� !"#$%&'()%*+,-.�� !"# !$%& !'()*+,-.

�� !"#$�� !"#$%&"'()*+,-.�

26 �� !"# (� )

�� /�� �� !
�� �� ��

2003� 12� 31�

�� !"# 4,281 379 379

�� ! 2,594 128 -

�� ! 7,396 - 69

�� !"# 621 - -

�� !"#$% /�� ! 507 448

2002� 12� 31�

�� !"# 9,843 547 547

�� ! 3,215 8 -

�� !" 9,932 33 33

�� ! 3,708 92 92

�� !"#$% /�� ! 680 672



�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./)01234,56789:;<�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()�� !"#$%&'()*+'(,

�� !"#$%&'()*RRQ�� EOMMO���F�� !"#$%&'()%&�*+,

�� !"#$%&'()E�� NRF��� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,%-./01

�� !"#$%&'()SON�� EOMMO���F�� !"#$%&�'()*+,-./

�� !"#E�� NRF��� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345678�� 

�� !"#$%&'(")*+,-�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'(

�� !"#$%&'(NUMIMMM�� EOMMO���� QMIMMM�� F�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'()*+",-.�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345

�� �� !"#$%&'()*+,%-./01

�� !"#$%&'()*+'(,-./012345�$6�� !"#$%&'(��

�� !"#$�� !"#$%"&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01

�� !"

�� !"#

OMMP�� !"#$%&'

E�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'(F

OS �� !"#E�F
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�� !"#

OMMP�� !"#$%&'

E�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'(F

OT �� !"#

�� !"#$%$&'()*+,-./01234�� !"#$%&�� !"#�"$

�� !"#$%&"'()*+,-NVB�OVB�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&�'

�� !"#$%�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0�1�� !"#$%&'()*

�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%&'()*+,OMMP�� !"PINMM�� 

� OMMO�� !" OIRMM�� 



OU �� !"#$

OMMP OMMO

�� !"#�

�� ! VVP UMM

�� !" SIPSV NISMV

�� !"# S VN

�� !"#�

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-�

�� !" RN QQ

�� !�"# QQ QM

VR UQ

�� !"#

OMMP�� !"#$%&'

E�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'(F
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Mailing Address:
18th Floor, Beijing Kerry Centre
1 Guang Hua Lu
Chao Yang District
Beijing 100020
People’s Republic of China
Telephone +86 (10) 65612233
Facsimile +86 (10) 85299000

Business is undertaken in the registered name of PricewaterhouseCoopers China Limited, incorporated in Bermuda with Limited Liability.
Registered address is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, Bermuda.

Report of the independent accountants

To the Management of China Development Bank

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of China Development Bank (the "Bank")
and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2003 and the related income and cash flow
statements for the year then ended.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Bank's management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.  Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion the financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial
position of the Bank as of 31 December 2003 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

1 March 2004



The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Governor: Chen Yuan Head of Finance: Shu Jiawei

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Notes 2003 2002

Interest income 4 59,167 51,668

Interest expense 4 (34,747) (32,206)

Net interest income 4 24,420 19,462

Fee and commission income 123 68

Fee and commission expense (7) (13)

Net fees and commission income 116 55

Dividend income 5 1,644 1,831

Losses on investment 15 (821) (2,391)

Other operating income 6 236 266

Operating income 25,595 19,223

Provision for credit losses 13,14 (2,829) 1,230

Other operating expenses 7 (4,299) (3,760)

Profit before tax 18,467 16,693

Income tax expense 8 (5,255) (4,774)

Net profit 13,212 11,919
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Governor: Chen Yuan Head of Finance: Shu Jiawei

ASSETS

Cash and balance with the PBOC 9 16,143 7,354
Due from other banks 10 2,085 913
Trading assets 12 821 680
Securities purchased under resale agreements - 9,228
Loans, net 13 1,120,885 876,132
Cinda bonds 14 103,016 103,046
Investment securities
- Available-for-sale 15 28,152 34,452
- Held-to-maturity 15 1,738 497

Fixed assets, net 16 2,412 2,039
Deferred tax assets 17 3,608 4,566
Other assets 18 2,135 2,804
TOTAL ASSETS 1,280,995 1,041,711

LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY

Liabilities

Deposits from other banks 1,344 1,874
Due to customers 19 65,734 40,005
Borrowings from other institutions 20 50,560 44,603
Trading liabilities 12 448 672
Debt securities in issue 21 1,054,970 860,543
Other liabilities 22 18,510 18,613
Total Liabilities 1,191,566 966,310

Owner's Equity

Paid-in capital 23 50,000 49,050
Capital surplus 23 - 134
Reserves:
Statutory surplus reserve 24 2,702 946
Statutory welfare reserve 24 1,806 703
General surplus reserve 24 653 -

Retained earnings 25 34,268 24,568
Total Owner's Equity 89,429 75,401

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY 1,280,995 1,041,711

Notes 2003 2002
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Governor: Chen Yuan Head of Finance: Shu Jiawei

Notes 2003 2002

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
Profit before tax 18,467 16,693
Adjustments:
Provision for credit losses 13,14 2,829 (1,230)
Provision for doubtful receivables (17) -
Provision for investment impairment 1,251 2,252
Gain on sales of investment securities (421) 139
Depreciation and amortisation 157 105
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 292
Amortisation of premium/discount of debt
securities in issue 1,620 615

Cash dividends received 5 (1,644) (1,831)
Net changes in:
Restricted balance with other banks (12) -
Trading assets (141) -
Securities purchased under resale agreements 9,228 (4,838)
Loans to banks 311 2,447
Loans to customers (235,253) (148,253)
Cinda bonds (635) 700
Other assets 1,142 (2,130)
Trading liabilities (224) -
Deposits from other banks (530) 1,171
Due to customers 25,729 7,927
Other liabilities 1,692 80

Income tax paid (5,664) (5,476)
Net cash used in operating activities (182,115) (131,337)

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Purchases of investment securities (35,959) (389)
Proceeds from redemption of investment securities 28,584 890
Cash dividends received 5 1,644 1,831
Purchases of fixed assets and other assets (508) (519)
Disposal of fixed assets and other assets 74 -
Net cash from investing activities (6,165) 1,813

Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
Proceeds from borrowed funds and debt securities 561,131 243,936
Repayments of borrowed funds and debt securities (363,547) (114,297)
Proceeds from capital contribution 645 1,601
Net cash from financing activities 198,229 131,240



CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'D)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

The following notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Governor: Chen Yuan Head of Finance: Shu Jiawei

                                                                        Notes              2003                     2002

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                                           9,949                         1,716

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year          11                    8,086                         6,370

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year                    11                  18,035                         8,086

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Interest received                                                                                     57,757                        51,075
Interest paid                                                                                           (30,756)                      (33,012)

Investing and financing activities that do not
involve cash receipts and payments

Increase in equity securities resulting                                                                
from debt to equity swap                                                                      1,924                          2,621

Decrease in equity securities resulting
from converting equity to debt                                                           (13,901)                                 -

Capitalisation of interest payable as borrowings                                       (648)                        (1,764)
In-kind contributions recognised as capital                                                (107)                                 -
Net changes in investing and financing activities that
do not involve cash receipts and payments                                  (12,732)                          857
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the "Bank"), a wholly state-owned development financial institution,

was established on 1 July 1994 in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC" or "China").  The

address of its registered office is No.29, Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing

PRC.

The Bank's primary purpose is to foster the economic development in China through the

provision of long-term financing of key projects and initiatives supporting the Government's

national economic development plan and industry policies.  The Bank's current principal

activities include raising funds to support its lending activities and extending loans in both

Renminbi ("Rmb") and foreign currencies to infrastructure, basic industry and pillar industry

construction projects.  This involves mobilising substantial financial resources, including the

issuance of debentures denominated in Rmb and foreign currencies in the domestic and

international capital markets; and borrowings from foreign governments, international financial

institutions and foreign commercial banks.  At present, the Bank conducts its principal business

activities exclusively in the PRC.

At 31 December 2003, the Bank had 4,224 employees (2002: 3,780).

The Bank has one subsidiary, Sino-Swiss Venture Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd., and

one associate, Sino-Swiss Partnership Fund.  The operations of the subsidiary and the

associate are immaterial to the Bank's operation as a whole.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)



2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial

statements are set out below:

A Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards.  The consolidated financial statements are prepared under

the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale investment

securities, financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading and all derivatives contracts.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting

period.  Material estimates that are susceptible to significant change in the near-term include

the determination of fair values of financial instruments and the allowance for loan losses.

Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events

and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

B Group accounts

(1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries, which are those companies and other entities in which the Bank, directly or

indirectly, has power to govern the financial and operating policies, are consolidated.

The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or presently

convertible are considered when assessing whether the Bank controls another entity.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Bank and

are no longer consolidated from the date that control ceases. The purchase method of

accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries.  Intercompany transactions,

balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are

eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered. Where

necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Bank.

(2) Associates

Investments in associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting. Under this

method, the Bank's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of associates is recognised

in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised

in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the cost of the

investment.

Associates are entities over which the Bank has between 20% and 50% of the voting rights,

or over which the Bank has significant influence, but which it does not control. Unrealised

gains on transactions between the Bank and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the

Bank's interest in the associates; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction

provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. When the Bank's share of losses

in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Bank does not recognise

further losses unless the Bank has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

B Group accounts (cont’d)

(1) Subsidiaries (cont’d)



(3) Foreign currency translation

The Bank's reporting currency is Renminbi ("Rmb"), the lawful currency of the PRC.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Rmb at the exchange rates prevailing on

the date of the transactions. Gains and losses resulting from settlements of such transactions

and from the translations of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

are recognised in the income statement at the exchange rates prevailing on settlement date

and the balance sheet date, respectively.

Translation differences on debt securities and other monetary financial assets measured at

fair value are included in foreign exchange gains and losses.

C Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments including foreign currency forwards, foreign currency and

interest rate swaps are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost (including transaction

costs) and subsequently are re-measured at their fair values.  Fair values are obtained from

quoted market prices and discounted cash flow models as appropriate.   All derivatives are

carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as credit default derivatives

allowing a bond issuer to transfer the credit risk of the underlying bond, which it may not own,

to another party, are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are

not closely related to those of the host contract.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in other operating income.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

B Group accounts (cont’d)
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While certain derivative transactions are intended to provide effective economic hedges under

the Bank's risk management positions, they do not qualify for hedge accounting under the

specific rules in the IAS 39 and are therefore treated as derivatives held for trading with

changes in fair value reported as other operating income.  The Bank has no derivative positions

that are accounted for as hedges.

The fair values of derivative instruments are disclosed in Note 26.

D Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

At year end, the Bank has not offset any major financial assets and liabilities.

E Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the income statement for all interest bearing

instruments on an accrual basis using the effective yield method based on the actual purchase

price. Interest income includes coupons earned on fixed income investment securities and

accrued discount and premium on discounted instruments.

F Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are recognised on an accrual basis when the related service has

been provided.  Commission and fees arising from negotiating, or participating in the

negotiation of a transaction for a third party, such as the purchase or sale of businesses, or

issuance of securities, are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

C Derivative financial instruments (cont’d)



G Resale and repurchase agreements

Securities sold subject to linked repurchase agreements ("repos") are retained in the accounts

as investment securities and the related liability is recorded as securities sold under repurchase

agreements.  Securities purchased under agreements to resell ("resales") are recognised in

the balance sheet as an advance to the counter-party. The difference between sale and

repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the agreement using the

effective yield method.

H Trading assets

Trading assets include derivatives and trading securities which were either acquired for

generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer's margin, or are securities

included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists.  Trading securities

are initially recognised at cost and subsequently re-measured based on quoted bid prices.

All related realised and unrealised gains or losses are included in other operating income.

Interest earned whilst holding trading securities is reported as interest income.  Dividends

received are included in dividend income.

All purchases and sales of trading securities that require delivery with the time frame established

by regulation or market convention ('regular way' purchases and sales) are recognised at

trade date, which is the date that the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.  Otherwise

such transactions are treated as derivatives until settlement occurs.  Transaction costs are

recognised as other expense when incurred.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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I Loans and provisions for impaired loans

Loans to customers, banks and other financial institutions are reported on the balance sheet at

amortised cost, net of provision for impairment.  Loans to banks and other financial institutions

include placements with banks and other financial institutions that have a term more than one

year.  All loans and advances are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers.

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that

a loan is impaired.  Objective evidence may include significant financial difficulty of the

borrower, a breach of contract such as default or delinquency, and granting concessions to

a borrower.  If there is objective evidence the impairment loss on a loan carried at amortised

cost has been incurred, a provision for loan impairment is established for each impaired

loan.  The amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the

recoverable amount, being the present value of expected cash flows, including amounts

recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted at the original effective interest rates

of the impaired loans.

Upon impairment, the accrual of interest income based on the original terms of the loan is

discontinued, and the accrual of interest on the recoverable amount of the loan is thereafter

recognised based on the rate of interest that was used to discount the future cash flows for

the purpose of measuring the recoverable amount.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for loan losses;

subsequent recoveries are credited to the provision for loan losses in the income statement.

If the amount of the impairment subsequently decreases due to an event occurring after the

write-down, the release of the provision is credited to provision for loan losses.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)



The provision for loan impairment also covers unidentified losses where there is objective

evidence that a loss has been incurred in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date.  These

losses have been estimated based upon historical experience of losses and reflecting the

current economic climate in which the borrowers operate.

J Investment securities

The Bank classifies its investment securities into the following two categories: held-to-maturity

and available-for-sale securities. Investment securities with fixed maturity where management

has both the intent and the ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity.

Investment securities intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold

in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices

are classified as available-for-sale.  Management determines the appropriate classification

of its investments at the time of the purchase.

Investment securities are initially recorded at cost, plus the related transaction costs directly

attributable to their acquisition.  Available-for-sale investments are subsequently re-measured

based on quoted bid prices or amounts derived from cash flow models.  Fair values for

unlisted equity securities are estimated using applicable price/earnings or price/cash flow

ratios refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer. Unrealised gains and losses

arising from changes in the fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale are

recognised in equity net of income tax effect.  Equity securities for which fair values cannot

be measured reliably are recognised at cost less impairment.  When the securities are disposed

of or impaired, the related accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the income

statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

I Loans and provisions for impaired loans (cont’d)
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Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortised cost using the effective yield method,

less any provision for impairment.

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that

an investment security is impaired.  Objective evidence may include significant financial

difficulty of the issuer, a breach of contract such as default or delinquency, disappearance of

an active market because of financial difficulties and for equity securities a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity below its cost.  If there is objective evidence

the impairment loss on held to maturity investments carried at amortised cost has been

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying

amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset's original effective interest rates.  If there is objective evidence that an available for sale

investment is impaired, the cumulative loss that has been recognised directly in equity shall

be removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Interest earned whilst holding investment securities is reported as interest income.  Dividend

receivables are included separately in dividend income when a dividend is declared.

All regular way purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised at trade date,

which is the date that the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.  All other purchases

and sales of investment securities are recognised as derivative forward transactions until

settlement.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

J Investment securities (cont’d)



All fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of such assets

to their residual values which are estimated at 5 percent for buildings and 0 percent for others

of the cost over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 30 - 35 years

Office equipment 5 - 11 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years

Motor vehicles 6 years

No depreciation is provided against construction in progress.

Fixed assets are periodically reviewed for impairment.  Where the carrying amount of an

asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its

recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are determined by reference

to their carrying amount and are taken into account in determining operating profit. Repairs

and renewals are charged to the income statement when the expenditure is incurred.

L Operating leases

The Bank entered into various operating lease agreements to rent its head office and branches'

office and facilities.  The total payments made under operating leases are charged to the

income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

K Fixed assets
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When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment

required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the

period in which termination takes place.

All leasing activities engaged in by the Bank to date have involved solely operating leases.

The Bank has not conducted any leasing activities as lessor.

M Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances

with less than 3 months' maturity from the date of acquisition including: cash and balances

with the PBOC, and amounts due from other banks.

N Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a

result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation

can be made.  Such provisions are charged to other operating expenses.

O Employee benefits

The Bank participates in a number of defined contribution plans administered and regulated

by local governments throughout the country.  Once the related contributions have been

made, the Bank has no further obligations and liabilities to retired employees. The pension

plans are generally funded by payments from employees and by the Bank.

The Bank's contributions to these pension plans are charged to the income statement in the

period to which they relate.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

L Operating leases (cont’d)



P Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the accounts. Currently enacted

tax rate of 33% at balance sheet date is used in the determination of deferred income tax.

The principal temporary differences arise from provision for impaired loans, investment

securities, doubtful receivables and revaluation of available-for-sale investment securities

and financial derivatives.  Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable

that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.  Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale investment

securities is charged or credited directly to equity, and is subsequently recognised in the

income statement together with the deferred gain or loss when the related investments are

sold.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law in each jurisdiction is recognised

as an expense in the period in which profit arise.  The tax effects of income tax losses available

for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits will

be available which these losses can be utilised against.

Q Borrowed funds

Borrowings are recognised initially at the actual proceeds received (fair value of consideration

received), net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised

cost and any difference between net proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the

income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective yield method.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
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R Paid-in capital

As approved by the MOF and the Chinese tax authority, business tax paid by the Bank is

subsequently refunded to the Bank in full.  In accordance with instructions from the MOF,

such financial subsidy is recognised as a capital contribution in the year when the refund

occurs, and such special tax refund policy would be terminated once the paid-in capital

reaches the registered capital of Rmb50 billion.

S Fiduciary activities

Assets and income arising thereon together with related undertakings to return such assets

to customers are excluded from these consolidated financial statements where the Bank

acts in a fiduciary capacity such as nominee, trustee or agent.

T Contingent liabilities and contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence

will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future

events not wholly within the control of the Bank.  It can also be a present obligation arising

from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of economic

resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial

statements.  When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,

it will then be recognised as a provision.

U Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in

presentation in the current year.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)



3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

A Strategy in using financial instruments

By its nature the Bank is engaged in the extensive use of financial instruments.  The Bank

raises funds primarily by issuance of debts at both fixed and floating rates and for various

periods and seeks to earn above average interest margins by investing these funds in long-

term infrastructure project lending.  While operating in China under the interest rate scheme

regulated by the People's Bank of China (the "PBOC"), the Bank seeks to increase these

margins by issuing long-term bonds with different maturities and reducing the cost of fund as

much as possible.

The Bank engages in derivatives transactions, which include currency forwards and swaps

and interest rate swaps primarily with its borrowers.  In order to offset the potential risks

related to the derivative transactions entered into with its borrowers, the Bank often enters

into similar or substantially similar contracts with other financial institutions. In order to hedge

its open positions in foreign currencies and interest rate, the Bank also enters into currency

and interest rate swaps to provide effective controls on the Bank's potential risk exposures in

the related areas.

B Credit risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk which is the risk that a counter-party will be unable

to pay amounts in full when due.  Credit risk is increased when counter parties are concentrated

in the same industries or geographical regions.  The Bank's lending activities are undertaken

entirely within China and concentrated in seven targeted industries.  Different areas in China

and different industries have their own unique characteristics in economic development,

therefore, could present different credit risks.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of

risk accepted in relation to single borrower, industry and location at provincial level.  Such

risks are monitored on a regular basis and subject to an annual review.

To manage its credit risk, the Bank applies rigorous underwriting procedures to each loan

application and has developed a disciplined credit risk management process.  Exposure to

credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential

borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations.  Exposure to credit risk is also

managed in part by obtaining collateral and guarantees.

Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer

as required. Guarantees and letters of credit, which represent irrevocable assurances that

the Bank will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third

parties, carry the same credit risk as loans.  Guarantee deposits are received by the Bank to

lessen the credit risks related to certain of these commitments provided by the Bank.  The

guarantee deposit which is at certain percentage of the notional amount of the guarantee

and letters of credit and other credit related commitments is determined by the creditability of

the customer.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credit

in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments

to extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

B Credit risk (cont’d)



CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

unused commitments.  However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused

commitments since most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers

maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit

commitments because longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit

risk than shorter-term commitments.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

B Credit risk (cont’d)

* Eastern China includes Beijing, Liaoning, Hebei, Tianjin, Shandong, Shanghai, Jiangsu,

Zhejiang, Fujian, Guangdong and Hainan.

** Central China includes Jilin, Heilongjiang, Shanxi, Henan, Hubei, Anhui, Hunan and Jiangxi.

*** Western China includes Xinjiang, Tibet, Gansu, Qinghai, Ningxia, Inner Mongolia, Shaanxi,

Sichuan, Chongqing, Guizhou, Yunnan and Guangxi.

Amount % Amount %

Loans to customers

Eastern China * 607,669 53 478,226 53

Central China ** 284,295 25 228,736 26

Western China *** 246,135 22 187,091 21

Loans to banks 1,839 - 2,150 -

Accrued interest receivable 2,313 - 1,655 -

1,142,251 100 897,858 100

2003 2002

Geographic sector risk concentration for loans and advances to customers
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The economic sector risk concentration for loans and advances to customers based
on the Bank's industry classification

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

B Credit risk (cont’d)

Amount %

Loans to customers
Electric power and heating 340,745 30
Road transportation 235,192 21
Water conservancy, environment protection
and public utilities management 182,506 16

Railway transportation 118,302 10
Urban public communications 68,892 6
Telecommunication and other information transmission service 42,724 4
Petroleum, petrochemical and chemical industry 40,019 4
Other 109,719 9

Loans to banks 1,839 -
Accrued interest receivable 2,313 -

1,142,251 100

2003

Amount %

Loans to customers
Power 325,224 36
Road construction 178,271 20
Railway 117,630 13
Urban infrastructure 115,636 13
Communication 42,237 5
Petroleum and petrochemical 35,665 4
Coal mining 26,288 3
Other 53,102 6

Loans to banks 2,150 -
Accrued interest receivable 1,655 -

897,858 100

2002



CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Loans and advances to customers by purpose

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

B Credit risk (cont’d)

C Market risk

The Bank takes on exposure in market risk.  Market risk arises from open positions in interest

rate products, currency products and derivative financial instrument transactions, which are

exposed to general and specific market movements. The Bank does not have significant

involvement in derivative financial instrument transactions. The Bank believes that its exposure

to market risk is not significant in light of the regulated interest rate environment in the PRC

and the Government's current policy of maintaining a stable exchange rate between the Rmb

and United State dollars ("USD").  There can be no assurance that these conditions will continue

in the future.  If these conditions change, the Bank's exposure to market risk could increase.

2003 2002
Amount % Amount %

Loans to customers
Infrastructure loans 1,089,153 95 870,117 97

Working capital loans 31,360 3 8,732 1

Technological renovation loans 17,586 2 15,204 2

Loans to banks 1,839 - 2,150 -

Accured interest receivable 2,313 - 1,655 -

1,142,251 100 897,858 100
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

D Currency risk

The Bank conducts the majority of its businesses in Rmb, with certain foreign currency

transactions in USD, Euros ("EURO"), Japanese Yen ("JPY") and to a much lesser extent,

other currencies. Through foreign currency swaps, the Bank maintains its foreign currency

risk in USD only.  The exchange rate between Rmb to USD is set by the PBOC.  In recent

years, the PBOC has maintained the exchange rate with USD in a very narrow band.

The table below summarises the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at

the end of the year.  Included in the table are the Bank's assets and liabilities at carrying

amounts in Rmb, categorised by the original currency.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)



CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

D Currency risk (cont’d)

Other
RMB USD currencies Total

As at 31 December 2003

Assets:

Cash and balances with banks 18,204 5 19 18,228

Loans 1,051,480 34,045 35,360 1,120,885

Cinda bonds 103,016 - - 103,016

Investment securities 27,531 2,359 - 29,890

Others 8,361 108 507 8,976

Total assets 1,208,592 36,517 35,886 1,280,995

Liabilities:

Due to other banks and customers 65,813 1,248 17 67,078

Borrowings from other institutions 1,019 31,770 17,771 50,560

Debt securities in issue 1,041,648 10,999 2,323 1,054,970

Others 6,708 3,723 8,527 18,958

Total liabilities 1,115,188 47,740 28,638 1,191,566

Net on balance sheet position 93,404 (11,223) 7,248 89,429

Credit commitments 737,166 14,890 6,163 758,169

As at 31 December 2002

Total assets 984,607 36,709 20,395 1,041,711

Total liabilities 915,411 33,147 17,752 966,310

Net on balance sheet position 69,196 3,562 2,643 75,401

Credit commitments 287,742 21,658 - 309,400
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E Interest rate risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market

interest rates on its financial position and cash flows.  Interest margins may increase as a

result of such changes but may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected

movements arise.  Currently, interest rates for loans and deposits within mainland China are

set by the PBOC.  The Bank operates its business predominantly in China under the interest

rate scheme regulated by the PBOC.  It is normal practice for the interest rates of both interest-

bearing assets and liabilities to move in the same directions.  Consequently, the Bank's

exposure to interest rate risk is not significant, except for the foreign currency denominated

investment in bonds and debt securities in issue.  However, there is no guarantee that the

PBOC will continue this practice in future.

According to the PBOC regulations the floor for loan interest rate can be set at 10% below the

stipulated rates.

F Liquidity risk

The Bank is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from current accounts,

maturing deposits and debt securities in issue, loan draw downs, guarantees and other calls

on cash settled derivatives.  The Bank does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these

needs as experience shows that a minimum level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be

predicted with a high level of certainty.  The management sets limits on the minimum proportion

of maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the minimum level of interbank and

other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of

demand.

The table below analyses the assets and liabilities of the Bank into relevant maturity groupings

based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)
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The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities of assets and liabilities is

fundamental to the management of the Bank.  It is unusual for banks ever to be completely

matched since businesses transacted are often of uncertain terms and of different types.  An

unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and letters of credit are considerably

less than the amounts under commitments because the Bank does not generally expect the

third party to draw funds under those agreements.  The total outstanding contractual amount

of commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements,

since many of these commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.

G Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market information

and information about the various financial instruments. The following methods and

assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for

which it is practicable to estimate that value.

(1) Cash and balance with the PBOC, Amounts due from other banks, Deposits from other

banks, Resale agreements, Interest receivables and payables, Other assets and Other liabilities

Given that maturities of these financial assets and liabilities are within one year, the carrying

amount approximates the fair value.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

F Liquidity risk (cont’d)



(2) Investment securities

The fair value of securities is based on quoted market price, if available.  If a quoted market

price is not available, fair value is estimated using applicable price/earnings or price/cash

flow ratios refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer.  In some cases, where

information is not available to reliably estimate fair value, reference is made to costs.

(3) Loans and advances to customers

The carrying amount of variable rate loans and advances to customers is a reasonable estimate

of fair value because interest rates are tied to the PBOC rate and are adjusted when the

PBOC announces interest rate changes.  The fair value of fixed rate loans to customers is

estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis utilising the rates currently offered for loans

of similar remaining maturities.

(4) Due to customers

The fair value of fixed maturity certificates of deposit is estimated using a discounted cash

flow analysis utilising the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

(5) Borrowings from other institutions and debt securities

The fair value of borrowings without quoted market price is calculated based on discounted

cash flows using interest rates for new borrowings with similar remaining maturities.

The aggregated fair values of debt securities are calculated based on quoted market prices.

For those securities where quoted market prices are not available, a discounted cash flow

model is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

G Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (cont’d)
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

G Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (cont’d)

(5) Borrowings from other institutions and debt securities(cont’d)

The estimated fair values of the Bank's financial instruments, of which the respective carrying

values are different, at 31 December 2003 and 2002 are summarised as follows:

Carrying Value Fair Value
2003 2002 2003 2002

Financial assets

Held-to-maturity securities 1,738 497 1,739 507
Loans 1,120,885 876,132 1,129,928 884,949

Financial liabilities

Due to customers 65,734 40,005 66,549 40,005
Borrowings from other institutions 50,560 44,603 56,227 52,237
Debt securities in issue 1,054,970 860,543 1,059,958 863,794

4 NET INTEREST INCOME

2003 2002

Interest income
Balances with the PBOC 202 117
Loans to customers 56,565 49,245
Cinda bonds 2,250 2,250
Others 150 56

59,167 51,668
Interest expenses
Due to customers and banks 387 254
Borrowings from other institutions 2,918 2,658
Debt securities in issue 31,438 29,294
Others 4 -

34,747 32,206

Net interest income 24,420 19,462



CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

2003 2002

Available-for-sale securities 1,644 1,831

5 DIVIDEND INCOME

Included in other operating income is the gain on changes in fair value of derivatives and

trading securities of Rmb178 million (2002: Rmb218 million).

7 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

6 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2003 2002

Staff costs 398 309

Loss on sale of staff residential quarters - 292

Administration expenses 237 192

Occupancy 88 93

Depreciation and amortisation 171 105

Travel expenses 58 67

Business tax and surcharges 2,938 2,441

Others 409 261

4,299 3,760
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

The actual income tax expense differs from the statutory income tax for the following reasons:

2003 2002

Profit before tax 18,467 16,693

Tax calculated at a rate of 33% (2002:33%) 6,094 5,509

Income not subject to tax:

- Tax free dividend income (201) (124)

- Tax free interest income on Cinda bonds (743) (743)

Non-deductible salary and other expenses 105 92

Others - 40

5,255 4,774

8 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax 4,233 2,506

Deferred tax (Note 17) 1,022 2,268

5,255 4,774

9 CASH AND BALANCE WITH THE PBOC

2003 2002

Balance with the PBOC is all available for use in the Bank's day to day operations.

Cash on hand - 1

Balance with the PBOC 16,143 7,353

Included in cash and cash equivalents (Note11) 16,143 7,354

2003 2002



CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

10 DUE FROM OTHER BANKS

Placement with other banks

Included in cash equivalents (Note 11) 1,892 732

Restricted balances with other banks 193 181

2,085 913

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2003 2002

12 TRADING ASSETS & LIABILITIES

Trading assets:

Government bonds - unlisted at fair value 314 -

Derivatives - at fair value

- Foreign currency forwards 379 547

- Interest rate swaps - 92

- Currency swaps 128 8

- Collars - 33

821 680

Cash and balance with the PBOC 16,143 7,354

Due from other banks 1,892 732

18,035 8,086

Cash and cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement consists of the following:

2003 2002

2003 2002
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

12 TRADING ASSETS & LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Trading liabilities:

Derivatives - at fair value

- Foreign currency forwards 379 547

- Interest rate swaps 69 92

- Collars - 33

448 672

2003 2002

13 LOANS AND PROVISION FOR IMPAIRED LOANS

The composition of loans is as follows:

Movement of provision for impaired loans:

2003 2002

At 1 January 21,726 27,586

Provision for the year / (Provision written back) 2,164 (1,230)

Write-offs (2,583) (4,983)

Recoveries 59 353

At 31 December 21,366 21,726

Loans to banks 1,839 2,150
Loans to customers 1,138,099 894,053
Accrued interest receivable 2,313 1,655

1,142,251 897,858

Less: Provision for impaired loans (21,366) (21,726)
1,120,885 876,132

2003 2002
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14 CINDA BONDS

The Cinda bonds are debt obligations issued by China Cinda Asset Management Company

("Cinda"), in exchange for certain non-performing loans transferred to Cinda by the Bank.  In

accordance with the related agreement defining the terms of this transaction between the

Bank and Cinda, certain non-performing loans with an aggregate carrying value of Rmb100

billion were transferred to Cinda in December 1999. In exchange for the transfer of the non-

performing loans, Cinda issued the Bank 10-year bonds with principal amount of Rmb 100

billion and an interest rate of 2.25% per annum.  Among other things, Cinda can redeem the

bonds prior to its stated maturity.

On 20 September 1999, the State Council mandated that the Cinda bonds are guaranteed

as to the payment of principal by the MOF.

On 15 July 2000 the State Council mandated that the interest income from the Cinda bonds

cannot be distributed.

In accordance with the Notice On Tax Exemption (Caishui [2001] No.152) issued jointly by

the MOF and the State Administration of Taxation on 8 October 2001, the related interest

income from Cinda bonds is exempted from business tax and income tax.

2003 2002

Principal 100,000 100,000

Accrued interest receivable, net of provision of

Rmb665 million (2002: Nil) 3,016 3,046

Total 103,016 103,046
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Included in the accrued interest receivable are overdue interest of Rmb3,118 million (2002:

Rmb2,484 million).  A provision of Rmb665 million (2002: Nil), computed based on the present

value of expected cash flows from collection of interest discounted at the original effective

rate of the Cinda bonds, was set aside resulting in a net carrying amount of Rmb2,453 million

(2002: Rmb2,484 million).  The remaining current portion of accrued interest amounted to

Rmb563 million (2002: Rmb563 million).

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

14 CINDA BONDS (CONT’D)

*Upon the approval of relevant authorities, the Bank has entered into debt to equity swap

("DES") transactions with certain of its borrowers.  In accordance with the agreements, the

Bank converts all or part of loan principals outstanding together with interest receivables as

DES investment in the borrowers.

15 INVESTMENT SECURITIES

2003 2002

Available-for-sale securities

Debt securities, at fair value

- Listed - 40

- Unlisted 7,395 100

Equity securities*, unlisted 20,757 34,312

28,152 34,452

Held-to-maturity securities

Debt securities - unlisted, at cost 1,738 497

Total investment securities 29,890 34,949



CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
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These DES transactions were directed by the Chinese Government as a way to help the

borrowers restructure their financial positions. Certain of the agreements between the Bank

and borrowers require, subject to Government approval, the borrowers to repurchase the

related equity securities from the Bank within a specified period of time.

Unlisted equity securities are carried at cost less any provision for impairment.  These securities

were received in connection with the above mentioned Government directed DES transactions.

In this regard, the Government retained certain rights and imposed certain restrictions related

to the sale of these securities.  The scope of these rights and restrictions is broad, and it is

not possible to predict how the Government will exert its control in this regard, which will

affect the value of these securities.  Accordingly, the Bank is unable to reliably measure their

fair value.

Included in debt securities are structured bonds of Rmb1,175 million (2002: Nil), issued by

other financial institutions with embedded derivatives, comprising mainly credit default options,

prepayment call options and interest rate options.

15 INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONT’D)
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

15 INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONT’D)

The movements in investment securities are summarised as follows:

**Loss on equity securities charged to the income statement amounted to Rmb862 million

(2002: Rmb2,391 million).

At 31 December 2003, there were no gross unrealised gains or losses related to the debt

securities classified as available for sale.

At 1 January 2003 34,452 497 34,949

Additions 36,613 1,241 37,854

Disposals (sale and redemption) (42,092) - (42,092)

Gain on disposal** 421 - 421

Impairment in value** (1,242) - (1,242)

At 31 December 2003 28,152 1,738 29,890

16 FIXED ASSETS

Cost 2,623 2,070

Accumulated depreciation (386) (242)

Net book value 2,237 1,828

Construction in progress 175 211

2,412 2,039

for-sale to-maturity Total
Available- Held-

2003 2002
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

17 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONT’D)

Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) are attributable to the following items:

The deferred tax charge in the income statement comprises the following temporary differences:

Provision for impaired loans 2,840 3,743

Provision for equity securities impairment 1,236 1,330

Provision foraccrued interest for Cinda bonds 220 -

Loss on disposal of staff quarters 413 415

Provision for doubtful receivables 54 56

Gain on derivatives marked-to-market (19) (2)

Temporary difference in capitalisation of transaction

cost on issuance of bonds (603) (522)

Temporary difference in net interest income (553) (491)

Others 20 37

3,608 4,566

2003 2002

Provision for impaired loans 903 2,397

Provision for equity securities impairment 94 (303)

Provision for accrued interest for Cinda bonds (220) -

Loss on disposal of staff quarters 2 (96)

Provision for doubtful receivables 2 -

Gain on derivatives marked-to-market 17 72

Temporary difference in capitalisation of transaction

cost on issuance of bonds 81 79

Temporary difference in net interest income 62 111

Other temporary differences 81 8

1,022 2,268

2003 2002
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18 OTHER ASSETS

19 DUE TO CUSTOMERS

20 BORROWINGS FROM OTHER INSTITUTIONS

Deferred transaction costs for debt securities in issue 1,828 1,583

Receivables arising from disposal of equity securities - 363

Others 307 858

2,135 2,804

2003 2002

Current accounts 62,205 39,591

Time deposits 2,787 411

Guarantee deposits 742 3

65,734 40,005

2003 2002

Borrowings from foreign banks - import credit 39,956 36,303

Borrowings from domestic banks 5,304 4,000

Other borrowings from foreign commercial banks 3,512 2,593

Borrowings from foreign governments 1,788 1,359

Borrowings from State Administration

of Foreign Exchange - 348

50,560 44,603

2003 2002
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21 DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE

Average
interest rate (%) 2003 2002

Rmb Financial Bonds issued

in domestic market 3.31(2002:3.32) 1,041,648 851,296

Foreign currency bonds issued

in domestic market 3.65(2002:Nil) 4,138 -

Foreign currency bonds issued

in international market 6.92(2002:6.92) 9,184 9,247

1,054,970 860,543

Certain Financial Bonds have provisions which allow the Bank or the bond holders to redeem

prior to the bonds' maturity.  If the Bank chooses not to exercise its redemption option on a

specified date, it is obligated to pay a higher interest rate on the bond.  All foreign currency

bonds are not subject to redemption options prior to their stated maturities.

Certain Financial Bonds have provisions which allow the bond holders to convert their original

bonds to the specified reference bonds issued by the Bank at pre-determined dates.

22 OTHER LIABILITIES

2003 2002

Accrued interest expenses 11,759 10,095

Income tax payable 4,143 5,574

Other payables 1,075 1,079

Others 1,533 1,865

18,510 18,613
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*The registered capital of the Bank is Rmb50 billion, all of which is required to be contributed

by the MOF.  The majority of the registered capital has been contributed through budgetary

programs established by the MOF.  The remaining amount has been made through financial

subsidy in the form of business tax refunds.  The MOF has directed the Banks to treat these

funds as contributed capital.  As of 31 December 2003, the registered capital has been

contributed by the MOF in full.

** Upon the approval by the MOF in 2003, the Bank transferred the capital surplus of Rmb134

million and the associated deferred tax effect of Rmb64 million  (see Note 17) totaling Rmb198

million to paid-in capital.

24 SURPLUS AND WELFARE RESERVES

Upon the approval by the MOF in 2003, the Bank allocated 25% of its profit after tax to a

surplus reserve and a welfare reserve, in each case, based on its statutory financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2002.  Once approved by the MOF, the surplus reserve can

be used to fund operating losses or transferred to registered capital, whereas the welfare

2003 2002

At 1 January 49,050 47,449

Capital contribution* 752 1,601

Transfer of capital surplus and associated deferred

tax to paid-in capital** 198 -

At 31 December 50,000 49,050

23 PAID-IN CAPITAL
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24 SURPLUS AND WELFARE RESERVES (CONT’D)

reserve can only be used for certain expenditures related to employee welfare.

Upon the approval by the MOF, the Bank transferred from statutory welfare reserve to general

surplus reserve in the amount of Rmb653 million for the expenditures related to employee

welfare during 2003.

No profit appropriation to these reserves for the year ended 31 December 2003 has been

made as the profit appropriation plan is pending approval by the MOF.

25 RETAINED EARNINGS ADJUSTMENT

According to the MOF's approval in 2002, the surplus and welfare reserves were believed to

be under-appropriated by Rmb119 million during the previous years and the Bank was

instructed to transfer this amount from retained earnings to surplus and welfare reserves.

26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following derivative instruments are utilised by the Bank:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase/sell foreign exchanges including

undelivered spot transactions.

Interest rate and currency swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for

another.  Swaps result in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates (e.g. fixed

rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these (i.e. cross-currency interest rate swaps).

Except for certain currency swaps, no exchange of principal takes place.  The Bank's credit

risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if counter-parties fail to perform



CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

their obligation.  This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current fair

value, the notional amount of the contracts and the liquidity of the market.  To control the level

of credit risk taken, the Bank assesses counter-parties using the same techniques as for its

lending activities.

Collars are combinations of interest rate caps and floors to specify a range in which interest

rates will fluctuate. The effect of the combination is to confine interest rate payments to a

range bounded by the strike price of the cap and floor options.

At 31 December 2003, the Bank had a total of 63 foreign currency forward contracts, currency

swap contracts and interest rate swap contracts outstanding.  These contracts will become

due at various dates through September 2014.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison

with instruments recognised on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts

of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not

indicate the Bank's exposure to credit or price risks.  The derivative instruments become

favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest

rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms.  The aggregate contractual or notional

amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments are

favourable or unfavourable and, thus the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets

and liabilities can fluctuates significantly from time to time.  The fair values of derivative

instruments held are set out in the following table.
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26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

The previous table provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or notional amounts

and the fair values of the Bank's derivative financial instruments outstanding at year-end.

These instruments, comprising foreign exchange and interest rate derivatives allow the Bank

and its customers to transfer, modify or reduce their foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

Included in held-to-maturity investment securities are structured bonds of Rmb 554 million

(2002: nil), which are debt instruments with embedded prepayment call options and interest

rate options (see Note 15).  The economic characteristics of these embedded derivatives are

closely related to the host contracts' economic characteristics and are not separated from

the host contracts for accounting purpose.

Contract/notional
amount  Fair values

Assets Liabilities

As at 31 December 2003

Currency forwards 4,281 379 379

Currency swaps 2,594 128 -

Interest rate swaps 7,396 - 69

Credit default options 621 - -

Total derivative assets/liabilities 507 448

As at 31 December 2002

Currency forwards 9,843 547 547

Currency swaps 3,215 8 -

Collars 9,932 33 33

Interest rate swaps 3,708 92 92

Total derivative assets/liabilities 680 672



CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

Included in available-for-sale securities are structured bonds of Rmb621 million (2002: nil),

which are debt instruments with embedded credit default options (see Note 15).  The economic

characteristics of these embedded derivatives are not closely related to the host contracts'

economic characteristics and are separated from the host contracts and accounted through

trading assets and liabilities at fair value.

Included in debt securities in issue are bonds with redemption options and conversion options.

These bonds amounted to Rmb180,000 million (2002: Rmb40,000 million).  The economic

characteristics of these embedded options are closely related to the host contracts' economic

characteristics and are not separated from the host contracts for accounting purpose.

The Bank mostly undertakes its transactions in foreign exchange and interest rate contracts

with other financial institutions. Management has established notional limits of these contracts

by counter parties, industry sectors and countries.  Actual credit exposures and limits are

regularly monitored and controlled by management.

26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
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27 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Bank participates in various defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by

municipal and provincial governments under which it is required to make monthly contributions

to these plans at rates ranging from 19% to 29% of the employees' basic salary or other

applicable calculating basis in each jurisdiction.  The Bank currently has no additional

significant cost for the payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of employees

other than the monthly contributions described above. The Bank's contributions to these

pension plans are charged to the income statement in the year to which they relate.  Expenses

incurred by the Bank in connection with the retirement benefit plans amounted to Rmb31

million and Rmb25 million for the year of 2003 and 2002, respectively.



2003 2002

Commitments to extend credit:

Letters of guarantee issued 993 800

Letters of credit issued 6,369 1,609

Bank drafts issued 6 91

Operating lease commitments:

Future minimum lease payments on operating

leases are summarised as follows:

Within one year 51 44

Between one and five years 44 40

95 84

28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003
(All amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
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